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Financial Highlights

Change Fiscal 1991 Fiscal 1990
Sales + 8% $3,056,247,000 $2,833,108,000
Gross Margin + b 735,258,000 702,680,000
Total Expenses™ + 21 730,307,000 602,429,000
Store Restructuring 71,288,000 0
Net Earnings (91%) 6,487,000 71,087,000
Per Share:
Earnings 18 1.91
Cash Dividends + 6 55 H2
Year-End Share Price + 61% $41.00 $25.50
A of Tanuniy 31, 1992
Shareholders of Record 6,216 6,261
Total Number of Employees 18,368 15,556
Shares Outstanding (Weighted Average) 36,513,000 37,214,000
® Includes store restructuring charge
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Dear Sharebolders,

The motto of North Carolina is “Esse quam videri” — that is, “To be, rather
than to seem.” Since Lowe's roots radiate from the Tarheel state, we feel entitled
to borrow the motto and offer it to shareholders and other friends as the key to
understanding Lowe's 1991 fiscal year.

We were tremendously successful in 1991, in spite of some semblances
(notably, our reported net earnings) to the contrary. We reached new highs in
sales volume and cash dividends paid, and we decided to accelerate the pace of
Lowe's transformation into a chain of big stores that not only seem to be, but
truly are, destination home centers for the Nineties.

For several years we have been making incremental progress along a
learning curve of store design and merchandising strategy. In 1991, everything
that we had learned crystallized into a conviction: this decade’s most successful
retailers will serve their customers with product assortments that are not merely
convenient or competitive, but actually dominant in their markets. Dominant
assortments cannot be displaycd on small sales floors, or even in stores that
seemed large to us just eight years ago, when the average Lowe’s store was
11,000 square feet and we thought that 30,000 should do the job.

The 31 stores in our “Class of ‘89" completed their first full year of
comparable sales in 1991. During each of the four quarters, they beat our
overall chain average by more than 20% in sales dollars per store, and by more
than 40% in operating profit per store. As a group, they outperform the chain in
retail sales as a percentage of the total sales mix; in gross margin as a percent of
sales; and in operating profit as a percent of sales. In 1992, for comparable
reporting this stellar group will be joined by 17 big stores which opened in 1990.

In January, 1992, we made an unprecedentcﬂ financial commitment to big
stores, restructuring to expedite the conversion of nearly half our chain into big
stores over the next four years. Combined with other new growth, this decisive
action will confirm Lowe's as the store of choice for home center customers in
our markets. “Esse quam videri” — or, to put a Nineties spin on it, “If you're

gonna talk the talk, you gotta walk the walk.”

Sales And Mix

Lowe's sales were up 8% in 1991, surpassing the $3 billion mark for the first
time. Retail customers accounted for 69% of total sales, while contractor
customers provided 31%.

Our retail sales have two business components: home center (Do-It-
Yourself ) and consumer durables. In 1991, home center sales increased 15%.
Consumer durables sales increased 6% for the year, due mainly to growth in
revenue from consumer electronics.

Contractor sales declined 2%, reflecting decreases in sales of lumber and
building commodities. However, although housing starts dropped to their
lowest levels since the end of World War 11, Lowe's sales per start actually
increased. We believe that 1.2 million is a reasonable level of expectation for
housing starts in 1992,
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Robert L. Steickland

Grodss Hargin Comments

E.JI.JI‘iI'IE IF'IE"I.-'I:_‘H.I‘ W h“.'gf.L" 5{‘|'iﬂ'.l|,]$ ilﬂp]t"“]ﬂ'nt{l‘_iﬂn ﬂi-
Everyday Competitive Pricing (ECP), which slightly affected
our margin. Simultaneously we reassorted our product
ofterings, which gave customers the opportunity to upgrade
from basic merchandise to mid-range and premium products.
Our customers responded with sales increases.

Recognizing that inventory should always lead our sales
curve and not trail it, we made a commitment to ]'J[‘:H‘(‘]'
inventory management. In 1991 we began our Quick Response
program, which provides for an expanded distribution system
to serve our stores bl:‘t ter. As part of QU ick Re:-;ptmse. we are
also implementing Electronic Data Interchange (EDI) with
some ol our best vendors, enabling them to help keep our
stores in stock. In the FLItLII'L?, E] wi" rcvnlutionizc invcnlc}:'y
management. Meanwhile, we expect to profit from our
investment in improved distribution.

f\nmher tactor a"bclillg our l‘nau‘gin WAS a Sﬁ rni“Eun LIFO
charge, attributable to price increases as demand picked up
during the fourth quarter. Readers who would like to compare
our cash Hlow with that of companies which report on a FIFO
basis may wish to refer to the Cash Flow section of our
ﬁ"l&ll'lugc:nmli [Jiscussion ;mci .r\neﬂ:_.'sis.

Trandsformation And Expansion

Our restructuring decision embraces a documented plan to
relocate 123 of our small stores into new |Eu‘g¢: prototypes
within four years. Also, 25 store locations were identified as
ﬁill.')jl_'L‘l to future L:um-;u“:_iul'inn or Ctusing.

We completed nine of those 123 relocation projects by the
end of fiscal 1991, and we will finish 31 more in 1992, That will
leave 83 stores to relocate by the end of 1995. We have the
hnancial capacity and the human resources to deliver those
projects, and more. We have set ourselves the goal of
expanding our sales floor square footage by 20% every year
through 1995, so that by the end of that year we will have more
than doubled our present eight million square feet. This is not
the incremental growth of more tentative years; this is a

transtormation.
Financial Capacity
Lowe's balance sheet remains in conservative posture, with

a low debt-to-capital ratio. In 1991, commercial paper and
short-term borrowings were our primary external sources of



cash. Attractive interest rates made short-term debt the vehicle
of choice; we have the flexibility to boost short-term financing
as necessary. A group of banks has agreed to provide up to
$100 million in short-term cash with interest at either the
prime rate or the bank transaction rate (whichever is lower).
Several banks have extended lines of credit aggregating 5315
million for potential documentary letters of credit or other
short-term borrowings.

At the end of fiscal 1991, Lowe's long-term debt totalled
$114 million, or roughly 15% of total capital. This reflects the
retirement of $30 million in 12.75% notes on December 23,
1991, and is our lowest level of long-term debt since 1984. For
1992, we are planning a medium-term note program. We
expect long-term debt to be about $185 million by the end of
fiscal 1992. This assumes the prepayment of $28 million in
public notes and $18 million in other current maturities.

We paid record dividends of $.55 per share in 1991, for a
total of $20 million. We have paid 122 consecutive quarterly
dividends. For further discussion of Lowe's stock as an invest-
ment during our three decades as a public company, we refer
you to comments on page 6 by Gordon Cadwgan, one of our
ibunding directors who |1E|ped take the company Pi.lhli{.' in 1961.

Playing To Our Strong Suits

Leonard (r. Herring

Lowe's market research confirms what trend analysts have
been predicting: current social and economic conditions favor
a turn to traditional values centered on the home. Diamonds
and Clubs (luxury and nightlife) are out; Hearts and Spades
(family and tending one’s own garden) are in. It's a new deal
for the new decade, and Lowe's holds a winning hand.

30 Words On 30 Years

This report marks Lowe's thirtieth year as a public company.
We deeply appreciate our partners, and your outstanding contributions.

Thr_‘ cl_e.s!'ln}r ur Lowe's beckons. Thc‘ I:!ESI ist‘.'t:t to come!

Cordial good wishes,

et L SHAbL ng‘wg%/&x/myz

Robert L. Strickland Leonard G. Herring
{:hairman uFiht-: Board PT‘ESi[IE'TIl and
Chiel’ Executive Othcer

Morth Wilkeshoro, NC
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Enduring Asvets:
Lowey Directors

Throughout Lowe s bistory, we bave been
fortunate in our directors. Their leadersbip guided
and strengthened Lowe's in ity early years, and
during our three decades as a public company we
bave relied on their unique experience in the realms
of retailing and finance.

Ads we move forward with Lowe s big store
transformation, we would like to salute our Board of
Directors and share some of their insights about
the future.

ooy

Petro Kulynych, Founding Director

“Lowe’s founder, Carl Buchan, had an idea
that was already germinating when | joined the
company not long after the second World War.

The idea was to sell quality building supplies and
home appliances directly to the consumer,
shortening the distance between the manufacturer
and the ultimate user. We would sell in high
volume, so that with good cost controls we could
keep prices and margins low and still realize a
profit. The strategy was known as ‘DTU,’ for
Direct To User, and it caused more than one
struggle with our suppliers.

“Carl Buchan instilled the belief that Lowe’s
success would be shared not only by management
but by all Lowe's employees. He wanted Lowe’s
employees to be owners of the company. That's
how Lowe’s went public thirty years ago: the
profit-sharing plan bought the company from Carl
Buchan's estate.

“Although I retired in 1983, I'm still around.
Long-time employees and friends of Lowe's still
know where to find me. I'm still doing whatever I
can to make sure that Lowe's continues to grow, so
that employees today will enjoy as bright a future
with the company as | have had.”

Pete Kulynych, with an old Lowe's ledger
wnder bis arm, remembers the original
wtore on C Street in Novth Wilkesboro,
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Gordon E, Cadwgan, Trustee and Financial

alBliated with Tucker, ."'l.ntllunlv. Inc. of Boston

”“L_\-'[”.‘-I.I look back over the last three decades,
you'll find that one hundred shares of Lowe's stock,
which cost $1,225 in October 1961, would have
become 3,000 shares by April 1992 and would be
\\'t)l'lh ITlllgh[}' $I ]{.}r{-}[}{}. {11 t‘]i'.'i(li."l'l(ii"q werne
reinvested, as is customary in such well-known
averages as the S&P 500, then the original investment
would now be worth about $135,000 (based on an
assumed average dividend rate of 1.25% per year).

“Investors always want to know "What is my
‘ate of return?’ If we take into account only the
|:-1‘{|1L'i;1al|. the umnpr.]um] rate ol return lor the Lowe's
shareholder over the last thirty years has been more
"]1:1" ]tj'r..-h ['H:[' }'E;lr'. "i"ﬁ"ritl.-] K].i.‘.'il:lf."n(iﬁ in(_‘lu{l{;‘.'{]. tl-l{..‘ rate
rises above 17%. Now, how does that compare with
other investment opportunities?

H(]'L'L‘T' ”“'1'“."' "'l."f_‘itl‘sr |I1L" S&I IJ 5'}{.} [I’:IL]L‘N _\-'iL'I.LEL'LI
between 10% and 11% return on investment. In the
.g[)l{lf_"[l tiﬂcﬂ[l'}.‘" (JF !I'l.L1 I':ig]:lt [E‘H. i.[ rEilL:I'"_"t] eIl il\'l_'l':.lgl_*
ol 16%. Conclusion: Lowe's is a classic example of a
‘l.'n'iﬁl.‘: i]'l‘.?i.'.!:'.tm{:nt. In ]qﬁl 'i.L WS d f‘[l'lilnﬂia":y" !"M'.]L]n(_i.
well-managed company in an essential business,
capable of sustained growth without resorting to
excessive debt or dilution of the uquil_j..'. That
description is, if anything, even truer now than in
1961.

"During the Eighties, Lowe's accomplished a
successful transition to its current identity as a major
home center retailer. The last few years have been a
period of capital investment to make Lowe's a chain of
|£‘|.:|‘E'L‘rL stores. I IU\’&'L"\"L"', I.]'".' El]"'ﬁl}ﬂ.ll‘}' {]il]n.l want ilﬁ‘;
earnings continually distorted by the ongoing cost of
1.]-]'i5 g{‘{]“’i|1. I]“I'H.f' .I:“..’St '\'n'-i].}-r o I;’._'IT‘{.‘.'HI;!.I.I ll'lil.l. was o sel
up a $7 1.3 million charge directly against 1991's
fourth quarter earnings. The consensus in the stock
market has been that this kind of rest r‘ut.‘turing 1S an
intelligent thing to do.

“Il'l. ﬂn].f;‘r o {“.'ﬂj[}'}r Elnf; II:TE' SHC'.(.'ESEE!I.II in l.]'“.‘.'
investment business, you have to be an optimist.
Through the years, Lowe’s has justified the optimism
of its investors. J"'r‘._\,' advice to Lowe's shareholders is

to 'stick with it.""

Gordon Cadwgan contemplates the investment landscape
fram an office abave Boston s financial dotrict,




Robert G, Schwartz, Chairman of thd Board,

Metropolitan Life Insurance Company

“FI‘l-.lt" I,'._f_['l".".:l.t I::I{K'.ll'ﬂ i['l.
t't:lt:-:L]:]lpii{:-n :Jul'in,r:{ the 1980 led to
overstoring in many retail sectors,
which means that marginal retailers will
E:I” l]:"q. [I'H'.'!' Wel _“.idl‘. IO |l'|;|.l ‘Il"l'.1
[]I'L‘SHL”‘L' iﬁ 0. "!"

Money is tighter, and people are doing
|l".‘-'|::'- ifl'li'.ll.ll."“.l I:]lll\-"i['lg'. I-|1|"H.‘L"q.' e ['.IL'_[“";HE"

O nto a

=

for pm';:lmsus. and when t|ur_'-.-'
store t|‘u:_'-.' want to see a broad range ol
pn‘_‘n:]uu:; S0 l]1|;-|1,' can consider all their
uptiun:e..

“I think Lowe's will thrive in

Ijlib} comj !l‘.l'i[li\'t" {"I.I!I'I.!:'Hl". I..{‘.I‘q.‘q."l.‘l':'- ]'I:'I:.‘-:

I_‘\.'Ui\-"i_‘l'.] EII'EZI t]['UFJ :-'~|"IiEJIT'Ii.‘I'Il t]ltll'l.]il{EiT'I_!:’:

supplies by the railroad tracks into a
chain of first-class ston at retail
I.{]‘L'ill.i{]”:\", 1'.|." 1~"|.'i|.E'|.i|'| e B'L‘r'“.'!'ill.if.]f'l l}i.
management. This means that Lowe's
I"l a5 2n Irl:_'.i."'\"t!f_! ‘.r‘__’:l":_'}'l.".-'l I'l "n-'.'i1 |'| =1 Jl.i 'J'i | Illt"q,': [ I'l{_!' e
|"|:'|5 ﬂl‘.\ril_".'.‘"‘ ]:H."L"l'l- el AITe I‘]:'”'l ilf'li] el
coherent strategy to see the com pany

t |'.| ['{_'ll]g'i'l ma III.'II' [ |-HI nges, suc |'| as i ]'H,"

".'['lil []g{!‘ Loy 2L ]'L"{:'l'i] Customernr lh'“'“;“ ;.lill;] l['lL"
Ur'lE_(.‘i F'I,::-'.' L'I l;‘ll‘lEL’ i nio a L"hii | n {3[I t Jig
stores.

"I attribute a lot of Lowe's
success to the :.'l;.u‘l‘l!.‘tan'lj-."r': rools in
western :\:{”'l |'.I {_‘:.ﬁ”'{‘lil]il. T]ll'ﬂl]gh ]]1‘\',."
L‘,'L";l['ﬁ"‘ on 1.|'H'_1 I.]‘".'.lil[‘l:lq II'\"U lill\'l;'” ].:'lL';l.!';Llﬁi.L
in the sense ol tradition and the basic
\'tllllt_"."r l"_"[l.l |J:\,' li-lt_" F_'.I{_"': 'I‘I'I‘It_' i|1 J. .{'I‘.-\'l.‘l."-
I:]L‘;.llhl I.i!.[“l.. rr]'l".::"..' |.:||'.|'1."LL \"n']‘ll‘.l.!. C\‘C':‘\'l}”t |I"..'
is looking tor in the Nineties: someplace
1D I}[?ll:_']n:.__!_'r .".".".I‘l'l'.l{"l]'!'i['lf__" to contrnbute.

I .i |"'. [ I AN IS I I }]. T] 2, COIm F !H.I'l-i(.‘ﬁ 1 ] 14l are
well grounded will be best prepared to
|'{'SI]U"{_I L l]]ﬁ," 1.'|:'.I£|J'.IE'I'."'."- l}‘J.:ll [I'li.“" (IL‘('E'!.{].L'

= [ i g
15 DNEINE.

Bob Sebwarts in the Hetropolitan

!“‘_?I':' Irlll'l'l'i"(}.l"l'lﬂi'll.




ewmarer, International Corporate Consultant and Director

Jack C. 5
of Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.

“I'm privileged to be able to travel, to visit stores on
several continents and to see retailing developments around
the world, judging which are the most promising. With that
as background, I'm convinced that Lowe's large-store format
is responding better than ever to modern customers and their
needs.

“Today's customers are smarter, more demanding,
and more selective because of communications technology
that brings a universe of possibilities right into their living
rooms. Their standards are based on worldwide audiovisual
perceptions, even if they never travel. They learn about
what's available elsewhere, and they want it right away:.

“A successful retail format meets those expectations.
Lowe's has developed not only a format focused on the retail
customer, but also the mind-set to go with it. We all resist
change, but change is nothing but challenge and opportunity.
Lowe’s has stepped forward and conquered its fear of
change. By experimenting with different formats it has given
Lowe’s customers the opportunity to decide which way the
company should go. The new large format is exciting,
modern, and responsive.

“In retailing, you never get it totally right — but God
help you if you get it wrong! Small stores don't have space
for experimentation, but unless you can change and
experiment, you're too inflexible for today’s marketplace.
Stores have to be exciting environments. Customers want to
be impressed. We also want the right to choose: we say
‘Stock everything, and let me decide.” Today, even people in
rural America expect stores of international caliber.

“Twenty years ago, | would have said that you
should remodel and reformat a store every ten years. At that
time, the industry average was about fifteen years. Ten years
ago, | would have said it should be done every five years.
Now you should do it every three or four years, or risk being
left behind.

“Disbelief and eynicism will hold you back. One of
Sam Walton's outstanding qualities as an innovator was his
readiness to believe: he would believe anything, try anything,
give anything a chance until it was proven wrong. If you're
ready to believe something new and different, you'll see
change coming before other people see it.”

Jack Shewmaker againot the neon
background of Nathan Road's “Miracle
Mele” in Hong Kong.
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I\'Ll HL” li l_{'lt"' |.|.|||':||.I| ] lll'l
Firm, Washington, D.C. and former

LI.S. Senator for Louisiana

“1 have alwavs considered

Lowe's Employee St

Ownership Plan to be a fine

example of how an ESOP can
'\\.":J[‘I'i. I.JU ['i]‘lr'-.{' '|-|‘.|L‘\,"'\'L"iL|1H an EI'I.L'
Senate Finance Commuttee, |
;r"l'\"il.‘_‘[l ]J.']‘n'\'L' IS Chil"l rman Lo [l_.'.‘"nli[j\'
on Capitol Hill several times in
.“;Lj'l:]]:]“l['l {_]rtl'.l';: I':.H(_)IJ l;'{_l]"l';_'l_"l‘t.

“Lowe's ESOP makes
L!‘Tl'll:"lll_:l}'[_."{?}'- i]'lll:'l oOwWners I:_Tiltl".l't"
company. Once employees qualily
II{}]' lh{'. I‘:-. {_}I}, [!'ll.‘.l\' F_I.I". Fs t': (RN
how much stock they own. They
‘-u"n';_:ltl_'l'l lI'H: .‘_"1|"|{|.|'t'_|I F‘ri{_'l_" Elr{_“'l'l I_J.:_l.:\" to
day. Their personal stake in the
company makes them more highly
]n".‘ﬁ[i".-'-'i[t'{-!, mornre {_"'Jr"l".'t'l‘”';.'tl H!Hﬂ]l
the operating results and overall
1,-'\'(.'“.&[] e {‘]i : 1.|']L"' Cio '[']].}E.I.I'l“,-".

“The ESOP rewards
{'[]1!_‘][{‘1\"{“'.""‘ 1-"|.'|'|.1:1 are ]t':\';il (18]
Lowe's. When a company s
growing, as Lowe's is, it's
|m}mr tant to E'ml.h.‘ la group of
successtul role models for new
employees to emulate. New
Lowe's employees can see that if
ll']t.'_'-.' stay with the company, l['w}.-

Can i'lq'.l“.'t.‘ il gli.'ll‘-ld |I.h.'. HF‘I{ZI d secure

“Roughly a qua
Lowe's stock is in its ESOP. In
my view, the employees are the
most important group of
Sl‘l:-‘l e I‘H}]ﬂ ]L' I's, 1 wecause more 1 ]'l;ll'l
any others they are the ones who

T
can I'['!Ell'i.l_‘ l]"IL’ t‘l}l']'llliitl‘\-' d SUCCeSS,

H.H'if. l'l"lrl.r .lr.r!.”f‘.l’f -*f!f-‘?ff!ff"}f_'ﬂ'} E.‘frlf
Lowe's employees in our
Chantilly, Virginia store.
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William A. Andres, Former Chairman of the Board,

Davton Hudson Corporation

“I'm what you might call a
hardware nut. [ love to go into Lowe's
stores, sometimes with a list but often just to
browse. With wide assortments and high
quality merchandise available in so many
product lines, | invariably find something
that I can use to solve a problem around the
house. I think Lowe's does an exceptional
job presenting merchandise for the do-it-
vourseller.

“As a former Dayton Hudson
manager, I'm impressed by the quality of
the product lines Lowe's is carrying. In
[Lrt'm‘;iti\'i: items such as window -;_'r:ﬁ‘.':_‘ringﬁ,
drapery rods, and millwork, for instance,
good design and quality materials are very
apparent. I'm also impressed by Lowe's
garden centers: the large ones are
particularly pleasurable for me to shop.
Customers have specialized interests these
days. They want to feel that a store offers
depth, range, and expertise in their favorite
areas. '”w l(n{}\\'h_‘dgcal[:li: ptr:_:!}h: in Lowe's
stores and garden centers help provide that
specialty-store feeling.

“One of the most exciting prospects
tor Lowe’s is the expansion of possibilities
that accompanies the big store
transtormation. anm_!al!,-‘s it tuktr:-c i |}ig
store to Ei{.‘]]iL""\r‘L" (]t]‘l['li.lh:ll'lf_'[‘ 2vEen ]I['I I‘;'~|I'|;‘|."
|‘|]:l|'|\'{‘lﬁ. {!HII iTi:_‘—Ji stores are il]]ﬁ{‘lll"L‘E}'
essential to compete in larger markets.

“,'\L__H" I.}El‘)].}ll" ]illl el i]ig]]ﬂ_"l' FﬁE'il}I'iE:\' On
home time, their interest in surrounding
themselves with quality at home continues
to grow. They want quality at a competitive
price, which is what Lowe's offers. That's
why Lowe’s is a very exciting business to be
in, with plenty of long-term growth

potential.”

Bill Andres vivits a Lowe's garden
eenter in Tallabassee, Florida,
Betty Andres, Bill's wife, exantines
a plant in the next aisle,

i
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John M. Belk, Chairman of the Board,

Belk Stores Services, Inc.

“Fashion became important
to Lowe's when the company
diversified from its traditional
clientele of building contractors and
started concentranng on retail
CUusiomerrs

“To move into the world of
retail fashion, Lowe’s made three
|T'|;.|.i1.:l]I l'l"lﬂ.”:.:‘ N "I‘I} ]_TLIT new
stores in better locations to attract
shoppers [rom surrounding
residential and commercial
neighborhoods. At the same time,
they enlarged their sales floors to
display more home fashion and
decor items. They also started to
pay close attention to the trends that
alfect fashion in retailing.

“During the years that I've

erved fashion trends, the biggest
e development has been the
E:I'cl\'.-'il]g i]]i]'ul;"['.l{'[,‘ {]1‘1.""':.‘ “-'(']I'l-{i[‘lg
woman. With women in the
work : to stay, many habits of
our society have changed, and those

habits affect fashion. Some of the

L‘I'Iq'_l ng{f.‘i dare t‘.lh\.'i{]'l.lﬁ. ]l]'\l. [I'H.'.'

increased need for women'’s clothing
that is stylish but also functional.
Other changes are more subtle: tor
instance, when working women are
at home, they're spending their time
in different areas of the house than
they used to. Their leisure time 1s
precious, and they want to enjoy it
with their families in a comfortable,
attractive environment. Like other
SUcCe II_I:I I'I{li';hi{_'ﬂ'l I'E_'[;li]L'I‘H. I.('J\\'Elﬁ
reflects trends like these in its

merchandising.

At Belk Stores Services in
Charlotte, Nortlh Carofing, Jobu
Belk previews a alhowe of wontern

ik for the new season.




4

Pflfarn 1ance Review

Store Space

Stores that aspire to be consumer "destinations”

must offer more than convenience and competitive
pricing; they must offer dominance in merchandise
selections. Lowe's transformation to a chain of big
stores is therefore an integration of two growth
modes: as we expand our sales [loor space, we are
reassorting and expanding our merchandise selec-
tion to make the best use of the opportunities we
are creating.

We have been continually remerchandising our
large stores. In 1992, our large sales floors will
carry roughly 60% more merchandise than they did
in 1990. Our stores with 100,000 square feet will
carry more than 25,000 sku'’s (stockkeeping units).
Ower the last two years, we have also
remerchandised some of our medium stores, and
they have responded with sales growth well above
our chain average.

Lowe's "Class of '89" has proven the power of
our big stores: the 31 stores that we launched that

year averaged $13 million in sales in 1991, of which

75% was retail business. By

Lowe’s 3 Businesses

Doilars in Wlkonm

contrast, our small stores,
with their limited potential for
self-service and DIY product
displays, averaged $8 million
in sales, of which 65% was
retail.

Lowe's ended hscal 1991
with 306 stores and more
than 8 million square feet of
retail space, a 13.5% increase

in footage over the previous

year. We completed 22 large A
store projects, of which 18 [ [—

s D'.’.'m.:ﬂ'w:m
were relocations, 3 were new ——

stores, and one was a retrofit.
We also closed 6 small stores, representing a total of
48,068 square feet.

[n 1992, we will complete 35 large store
projects comprising 31 relocations and 4 new
stores. These projects will give us an additional 2
million square feet of selling space, bringing our
chain total above 10 million square feet.

Sales Floor Size and Three Business Performance
Dollars in Milliens, Except Sales Per Square Foot 1991 1990 1989 1986
l. Stores Open Year-End 306 a09 306 300
2. Stores Open During Year ' 307.2 305.8 298.7 291.4
Sales Floor Square Footage
3. Total Year-End 8,016,136 7061,925 6,219,018 | 4,452,161
4. Average, Year-End * 26,197 22 854 20,5324 14,841
5. Weighted Avg. During Year * 7h34,234 6,601,916 5,689,872 | 4,043,904
Sales Results 4 Change® % Change® B Change®
. Home Center + 15% 1,641 +15% 51,423 +11% §1,240°¢ 5 928
7. Consumer Durables + b 465 o 437 + 12 410=° 335
8. Building Contractor () 950 (3) 973 &3] 1,001 1,020
9, Total Sales + B% 53,056 + 7O 52,833 + 5% $2,651 52,283
Sales Per Square Foot
10. HomeCenter & Consumer Durables 5 280 $ 282 $ 295 5 312
11. Towl® $ 406 $ 429 $ 474 $ 565
Sales Per Average Store
12. Home Center® + 15% $ 534 +12% $ 4.65 +10% § 4.15 $ 3519
13. Consumer Durables ™ + 6 1.51 + 4 1.43 + 11 1.37 1.15
14. Building Contractor* (3) 309 (5) 3.18 () 3.35 3.50
15. Total ® + 7% $ 9.94 + 4% 5 926 + 4% S B.87 5 7.84
* Change from prior year, computesd from uncouaded numbers. * Line 5 divided by line 1. * Line 6 & 7 divided by line & Line 7 divided by line 2.
m= Loy 15 ikl v e rochustithend i pellect 8. Pevisioon i amorrment L Y dive 4 curvontyoar, plos e d priorgmar; * Liny 9 divided by tine 5.  Line & divided by line 2.
clissilication divided by 2. multiphied by Ene 2 % i & divided liy: le 2 * Line 9 divided by line 2.
! Brares open at beginning of year. plus stores opened and closed
during year .'n|||.|||||n.| by sabebing 1oeal sare menths of operanon
for new wtores sl closed sores and dividing by 12




Merchandise Sales Trends

Our home center product categories are re-
sponding to their increased space allocation as we
predicted they would, with 1991 sales growing
nearly twice as fast as Lowe’s total sales for the year.
Home decorating and illumination led the way,
with total sales growth of 18% over last year. Sales
in this category have grown 87% since 1986, sur-
passing structural lumber as Lowe's second largest
category in terms of total sales.

Hand and power tools are also selling extremely
well as we build dominance in Lowe's selections of
these products. Over the last five years, tools have
led all other categories, with a compound growth
rate of 18%.

Sales in our kitchen, bathroom, and laundry cat-
egory grew by 14% in 1991. Kitchens and bath-
rooms are the most popular rooms of the house for
extensive repair and remodeling projects, and the
success of our expanded selection of high quality

cabinets is proof that when consumers undertake

Growth In Sales

Floor Size
Aerags Souls Footu Pe Sisi
N Y

these projects, they do not buy
just basic merchandise.

Lowe's lawn and garden =
products have experienced
double-digit growth percent-
ages every year for the last
three years. These are not
just plants and potting soil,
but what we call “hard
lines”" — everything from pa-
tio tiles to riding lawn mow-
ers. In Lowe's garden centers
we have achieved a fertile mix
of products yielding a
bumper crop of sales.

Our consumer durables
sales climbed 6% in 1991, led by sales of home en-
tertainment items and heating, cooling, and water
systems. Bucking the national trend toward a slow-
down, Lowe’s consumer electronics sales increased
12% as we successfully upgraded our offering in

both audio and video components.

Merchandise Sales Trends

Dollars in Millions

Total Sales

tegory
1. Structural Lumber

2. Building Commodities

+ 3% + 3%

& Millwaork v 2 + {1}
3. Home Decorating &

Mumination +13 +18
4, Kitchen, Bathroom

& Laundry + 7 + 14
5. Heating, Cooling &

Water Systems +11 + 16
6. Home Entertainment * T +12
7. Yard, Patio & Garden +13 + 12
8. Tools +18 + 18
9. Special Order Sales (3) (2)
Totals + 6% + 8%

Change Total
5Year CGR  From 1990 Sales %

Base Year
1991 1990 1989 1986
Total Total Total
Sales % Sales % Sales %
5 484 6 $ 469 16 % 455 17 |$ 419 18

762 25 7o 27 76l 29 698 30

496 16 419 15 346 13 2656 11

311 10 272 10 237 9 221 10
183 (5] 158 [ 144 5 110 5
147 5 131 5 125 & 107 5
329 11 295 10 261 10 177 8
150 5 127 4 112 4 65 3
194 6 198 7 210 8 221 10
$3,056 100 52,855 100 $2,651 100 |$2,285 100
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Market Research
Population and the American Household

The real essentials of Lowe's business don’t come in through
the loading dock; they walk in the front door of our stores. Who
are our customers, those millions of individuals known collec-
tively as the American consumer? How are they different today
from what they were yesterday? How many of them can Lowe's
serve? What is the best way to connect with them? What would
they like to see in our stores?

There was a time when the science of demographics was
more or less limited to studying tracks in the sand. Which way
was the caravan going, how many camels were there, and were
they heavily loaded? In this electronic age, even the complex and
hyperkinetic American scene can be statistically monitored, ana-
lyzed, and updated as fast as we can digest the information. As
our marketplace becomes increasingly Darwinian, we will use
our detailed knowledge of our customers and their needs in order
to speed Lowe's evolution and growth.

Population

From the end of World War 11 right through the 1960, the
U.S. population mushroomed like the clouds over the Bikini
atoll. Boom! America’s most numerous generation was being
born, nurtured, housed, and educated. In the South, Lowe's
homeland, the years of remarkable growth were prolonged after
the Baby Boom by migration from other regions. Between 1970
and 1990, the South grew by nearly 39% while the U.S. popula-
tion increased by 23%.




Population growth in the Nineties is more
moderate, although the South is still predicted to
outpace the country as a whole, growing by 11%
while the total population increases by 7%. Retail-
ers must get in shape: like a baggy sweat suit, the
rapid market growth of the last few decades has
covered a multitude of sins. However, although
there will be tewer new consumers in the future,
certain retail markets will grow as customers re-
align their spending priorities for the way we live
now.

Housebold

Lowe's basic consumer unit is the household,
because we sell products to be enjoyed by people
who share living space — be it a town house, a
beach bungalow, or a suburban fortress complete
with drawbridge and moat.

The American household has diversitied sig-
nificantly since Lowe's was founded, and its num-
bers have burgeoned. During the Seventies and
Eighties, as Baby Boomers left the nest to marry
and form households of their own, the number of
American households grew at a rate that was
twice as tast as the overall population growth. But
newlyweds were not the only source of increase.
The fission eftect of record-high divorce rates
split nuclear households, making two from each
one; meanwhile, single people (seeing all those
marriages break up) were staying single longer.

What We Own

Answering Machine
Cable TV Service
Car

Mare Than One Car
Cassette Tape Deck
Microwave Oven
Nintendo
Personal Computer
Television

More Than One Television

Telephone Service
VCR

More Than One VCR
Video Camera

Soirce! Foviwos, Consus Bureaw, DYG
MM = mot meaningful

Mare Than One TV 71%
More Than One VCR 28%

“ 'R
. Cable TV |
| Service 53%

- Microwave
-
Personal Oven 86%
Computer 26%

- B

Answering
| Machine 42%

=il

Telephone
Service 93% i

-

video |
- Camera 168% |

W
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% of households with:

1951 1971 199

0 0 42 :

0 7 53 Maore Than
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4 35 53 : ‘
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0 -

0 0 32 .

0 0 26
23 94 98

0 28 m
62 91 93

0 0 79

0 0 28
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As life expectancy increased, elderly people were maintaining in-
dependent households longer than ever before. The net effect
was that in twenty years, the number of U.S. households in-
creased by almost one third.

Thanks partly to incoming migration, the South has been a
notable beneliciary of this household growth. In the last two de-
cades, the number of Southern households has increased by 60%.
The South now contains more than 34% of all U.S. households,
up from 30% in 1970. This could reach 36% by the year 2000, if
current projections prove accurate. In that case, the total number
of Southern households will have nearly doubled in thirty years.

Housebold Characteristics

An American household lowers its drawbridge; you cross the
moat and go inside. You are immediately struck by The Curious
Circumstance of the Vanishing Housewife. Currently very few
American families fit the traditional profile which features a
breadwinning man and a homemaking woman. Female Baby
Boomers have crossed the moat to make an unprecedented
splash in the labor pool: in 1990, nearly three-quarters of all adult
women between the ages of 20 and 45 held full-time jobs,
whereas in 1970 just over 50% worked full time outside the
home. Today's working women are also returning to their careers
after having babies, instead of dropping permanently out of the
work force as many of their mothers did.

It takes two full-time wage earners to equip a household in
the high-tech style to which Americans have become accus-
tomed. Ten years ago, a newlywed couple could start out with a
bed, stereo, television, toaster oven, and coffee maker. Now there
are more “essentals” a CD player and tape deck with the stereo,
a microwave oven, a VCR and cable hookup for the television, a
telephone (cordless, perhaps, or with FAX?), a telephone an-
swering machine, and probably a personal computer.

The working couple of the Nineties is staying married longer
(Who wants to play the field these days?) and staying home
more (“Honey, did you pull up the drawbridge?”), which partly
accounts for the Baby Boomlet now in progress. In 1990, the
number of childless couples fell for the first time since the Census
Bureau started keeping track in 1961.

With children to raise and household expenses to divide and
conquer, it's not surprising that the rarest and most valued com-
modity to working couples of the Nineties is their time. In a re-
cent Hilton Hotels Time Values Survey based on a poll of 1,010
guests, 70% of those earning $30,000 a year or more said that
they would give up a day's pay each week to regain a day of
free time.



Money and Spending Househald Income By

Age Distribution

How important is making money? Americans spend lots of _
F B Dolars i Billions

time doing it. Second only to the Japanese, who spend 47 hours

a week at the workplace, the average American works 39 hours a Age of Aggregate Income

week. We also tie with Canada and Japan for the least average ?;u;nhnid g 111?3 $ zgu{]nﬁ?g

vacation time, at 10 days per year. 2534 693.4 1,040.8

35-44 906.6 1,953.2

y 45-54 7233 18320

Disposable Personal Income ‘ ‘ 1 55-64 5026 11334

Disposable personal income can be defined as income left to 65> 4727 962.3

the taxpayer after the government takes its hands out of his All Households  $3,409.0 $7,128.5
pockets. As a percentage of the gross domestic product, DPI rose WJ'&%“MMTM DL s

slightly last year in spite of recession-related hikes in local and il B AL

state taxes.
Personal income is not projected to increase in the Nineties as Consumer Spending Personal
fast as it did in the Eighties: the worklorce i1sn't growing as Consumption Expenditures

rapidly, so the escalator of promotions has slowed, and lower

A 3 - X Percent of Personal

inflation rates have quieted demands for compensatory wage Consumption Expenditures

increases. Nevertheless, by the end of the decade, Baby Boomers 1975 1980 1990 2000e

between the ages of 35 and 55 will have seen their household :gﬁg&m Wk Skl TSk

incomes grow by more than 40% from 1989 levels, as they settle Operations 7 10 14 13

: e G Food 21 21 18 17

into their years of highest earnings. Clothing F. Mogn ol

What are people doing with their money? Well, they're not Transportation 13 14 12 12

eating it: surveys of personal consumption paltcrns’ reveal that g‘;::tm E ;1 }g ;g

Americans today are spending a smaller fraction of their incomes Total 100% 100% 100% 100%

to feed themselves. Transportation expenditures are holding I STt st ik e e Cas

more or less steady. Housing, that perennial American priority, B=Frinte

continues to account for about 15% of our individual spending —

eq:;iec: now, perhaps not surprisingly, by our expenditures for Household Spendable

medical care. | _ , Discretionary Income

Spending on household operations has been increasing, as Dollars in Billions

changing materials and technology have made available a Discretionary Income

dazzling array of new possibilities for comfort and entertainment mE: Households s 19?33 s 21!4“31];

in the American home. If we continue to “cocoon” as this decade ;5_3 4 61 _'5 2773

progresses, expenditures in this category will likely remain 35-44 780 3196

cﬂ,ngla nt. 45"54 ﬁu-'q' 31 1.3
55-64 593 332.1
65 > h22 2820

Savings Total $319.0 $1,566.7

. A e &1 e e Source: 15, Bureay of tha Census, Statisfical Absiract of fh Ui
Installment debt has been deum:‘tng since 1ts tax % Prey s nsraany

deductibility phased out, and the desire to clean up househaold # = Estimate in nominal doliars



balance sheets has been facilitated by recent opportunities to
refinance home mortgages. Now, in an economic climate of
cautious recovery from the late unpleasantness, many Americans
are focusing on saving money for retirement and for their
children’s college educations.

In that Hilton Hotels survey mentioned above, saving money
was cited as the top monetary goal for the 1990's, ranking behind
personal goals such as spending more time with tamily and
friends, and intellectual and physical self-improvement. By
contrast, making more money ranked two notches lower, behind
the goal of increased free time.

Everyone knows someone whose job or business was
affected by the recent recession. That fact is often cited by
analysts as one reason why the recovery has been faint and
tentative to date. Polls show that consumer confidence is low,
deflated both by the recession and by media-augmented concerns
for America's long-term economic leadership. Even if we
discount the traumatic impact of singular events such as last
year’s Persian Gulf War, the consensus is that underlying
consumer attitudes are shifting, and that the long-term trend is
toward greater fiscal responsibility, caution, and conservatism on
the part of the American consumer.

However we decide to spend (or not spend) our money, by
the time we are hifty roughly one third of our after-tax income
(DPI) can be classitied as discretionary. Therefore, as the Baby
Boomers move into their peak earning years, the sheer weight of
their numbers should keep the overall level of discretionary
spending from declining drastically in this decade.

ffordabili

Housing is more affordable now than it has been in years.
Why? For one thing, the median selling price of new homes
actually decreased in 1991 back to its 1989 level. The median
family income is higher than ever, while inflation is down. Fixed
mortgage rates are currently the lowest they've been since 1978.
Also, as older Baby Boomers trade up into new homes, they are
vacating the largest number of starter homes ever built for a
generation of families. This plentiful supply means that prices
should be extremely competitive for some time to come.



Newly conservative American consumers who are potential
home buyers should be encouraged by the decreased
commitment that monthly mortgage payments now represent,
relative to household income levels. Whereas monthly house
payments took 36% of the household income in 1981, they took
less than 22% in 1991.

Retailing and Competition

It's the best of times, it's the worst of times — and when has it
ever been otherwise, really? The recession, which upped the ante
for retail survival and caused many marginal merchants to fold,
has sweetened the pot for retailers like Lowe's. We're holding
some good cards, and we know how to play the game. Diamonds
and clubs (luxury and nightlife) are out; hearts and spades (home
and garden) are in. Lowe’s has the products that consumers will
spend money on now, at prices that satisfy the craving for value.

Our trick!

The Home Center Market
You can look it up: despite the recession, the Persian Gulf
War, and low consumer conlidence in the economy, the total

home center market actually grew slightly in 1991, to $104.1
billion from $103.7 billion in 1990.

There was a pause in Do-It-Yoursell (DIY) activity while
America fought the war and coped with its altermath. This
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Repair &
Remodel
$50 Billion*

1996e
$245

Billion

delayed the growth of the DIY market, which
should be back on track in 1992,
As we noted in last year's report, the home

repair and improvement market has been

growing, as houses dating from the post-World
War 11 building boom begin to show their age.
In 1991, sales of professional home improvement
materials came within ten percent of sales of

-1 991 l building 5“F’Pliﬂt‘- for new construction.

r 1990

$176 |

$183 - Billion |

Billion

| Conswmer Durables

Lowe's is the only major home center retailer

i to compete substantially in sales of home

appliances and consumer electronics. We take

pride in the increasing variety and depth of our

product selections in these categories, because

consumer durables distinguish Lowe's as a

complete destination home center.,

Big-ticket appliances are part ol many major

I‘t(]]‘l'lll iiﬂpl"ﬂ\‘ﬂlﬁﬁﬂt Elﬂd t!l'l]'li"ll'l(:l’.:‘lnl.."l"ll ['lIT‘.IiEL‘lS.

_—

DIY
$91 Billion*

— and have proven to be a consistent source of
S—ﬂl{;."ﬁ.

Consumer electronics sales are stimulated by

the introduction and popular acceptance of new
technologies. In 1991, the total electronics mar-
ket dipped slightly, as some retailers disappeared
from the scene and others contracted their

product offerings. Lowe's sales defied the trend,

New
Housing
$67 Billion*

Consumer
| Durables
$37 Billion*

*1996 Estimate

fi-
b

Lowe’s Total Market Potential

Billions
Home Center
Contractor Homeowner

New Housing | R&R* DIY Durables  Total
1996e  $67 . $50 $91 $37 $245
1991p 40 36 68 32 176
1990 46 36 68 33 183
1985 40 25 54 29 148
1980 24 16 38 14 92
1975 $22 $8 $22 $8 $ 60

A & A = Aepair and Remodeling = Estimale  p z_}.'-*.rnlirnlmq
Soance: Manthiy Retall Trade, US. Depariment of Comménce, Bursaw of the Census; Hame improvement Ressarch Instiute; Management Horizons



however, thanks to the expanded product lines made possible by
our big stores. We will continue to monitor new developments
and shifts in consumer demand, in order to capitalize on the
American love alfair with electronics.

Our home center market consists of DIY customers and
repair/remodel building materials customers. It is a growing
market, full of potential both by virtue of its size (predicted to
reach $141 billion within the next five years) and its
fragmentation. The top ten building supply and home center
retailers currently account for just 18% of the total market. In
terms of growth potential, this contrasts very promisingly with
mature industries such as discount retailing, where Wal-Mart
and Kmart have sewn up the lion's share of the total market.

As large, sell-service destination home centers multiply, more
and more consumers are turning to retailers like Lowe's and
Home Depot for items that they used to buy from other store
formats. For instance, in 1988 home centers ranked sixth on a
list of preferred sources for lawn and garden supplies, with 17%
of consumers saying they would shop at a home center for these
items. By 1990, home centers had moved up to fourth place as a
lawn and garden retailer (behind garden centers, hardware
stores, and major discounters) and were preferred by 25% of the
consumers surveyed.

Market fragmentation
is also visible in consumer
durables, most particularly
in electronics. Although
consumer electronics
account for less than 6% of
Lowe's total sales, we are
among the top forty
electronics retailers in the
nation. In the home
applianm market, which
has long been dominated
by Sears/Brand Central,
Lowe's ranks among the
top ten retailers nationally.
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Reosults of Lowe's
1990 Shareholder Survey
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Management's Responsibility for Financial Reporting

Lowe's management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for their integrity and objectivity. These
statements conlorm to generally accepted accounting principles and include amounts which are based on management's best estimates
and judgments. Lowe's management also prepared the other information in this annual report and is responsible for its accuracy and
consistency with the financial statements.

The Company's financial statements have been audited by Deloitte & Touche. Management has made available to them all of the
corporation’s financial records and related data, and believes that all representations made to Deloitte & Touche during its audit were
valid and appropriate. Their report provides an independent opinion upon the Fairness ol the financial statements.

Management has established and maintains a system of internal controls that provides reasonable assurance as to the integrity and
reliability of the linancial statements, the protection of assets from unauthorized use or disposition, and the prevention and detection of
fraudulent financial reporting. Management believes that, as of January 31, 1992, the system of internal controls is adequate to accom-
plish these objectives and the financial statements are free of material misstatement. Lowe's maintains a strong internal auditing
program that independently monitors the internal control system as well as assesses company activities related o compliance with
policies and procedures, the sateguarding of assets, the efficient use of resources, and the accomplishment of stated objectives and goals.
Management also recognizes its responsibility for fostering a strong ethical climate so that the Campany’s affairs are conducted accord-
ing to the highest standards of personal and corporate conduct.

Audit Committee Chairman's Letter

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors is composed of the lollowing four independent directors: William A. Andres,
John M. Belk, Robert G. Schwartz, and Gordon E. Cadwgan, Chairman. The committee held five meetings during fiscal 1991.

The Audit Committee oversees the Company's financial reporting process on behall of the Board of Directors. In fulfilling its
responsibility, the committee recommended to the Board of Directors, subject to shareholder approval, the engagement of Deloitte &
Touche as the Company's independent public accountants. The committee discussed with the internal auditors and the independent
public accountants the overall seope and results of their respective audits, their evaluation of the Company's internal controls, and the
overall quality of the Company’s financial reporting. The committee also reviewed the Company's consolidated financial statements and
the adequacy of the Company’s internal controls with management. The meetings were designed to facilitate any private communication
with the committee desired by the internal auditors or independent public accountants.

Gordon Cadwgan
Chairman, Audit Committee

Independent Auditors’ Report

Ta the Board of Directors and Shareholders
of Lowe's Companies, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Lowe's Companies, Inc. and subsidiaries as of January 31,
1992, 1991 and 1990, and the related consalidated statements of current and retained earnings and cash flows for the fiscal years then
ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and
pertorm the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Lowe's
Companies, Inc. and subsidiaries at Janvary 31, 1992, 1991 and 1990, and the results of their operations and their cash flows lor the
fiscal years then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

Deloitte & Touche

Charlotte, North Carolina
February 25, 1992
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Consolidated Statements

of Current and Retained Earnings

Lowe's Companies, Inc, and Subsidiary Companies

Dwllars in Thousands, Except Per Share Diata Fiscal Yo Fiscal %0 Fiscal O
Fiscal years end oo January 31 of following year 1991 Sales 1990 Sales 1989 Sales
Current Earnings
MNet Sales: 53,056,247 100.0% 52,833,108 100.0% 52,650,547  100.0%
Cost of Sales 2,520,989 5.9 2,130,428 752 2,004, 164 75.0
Gross Margin 735,258 24.1 702,680 24.8 646,383 244
Expenses:
Selling, General and Administrative 555,322 18.1 505,918 17.9 447,571 17.0
Depreciation 58,298 1.9 51,431 1.8 46,134 1.7
Emphj‘wc Retirement Plans (Nowe 7) 3046l 1.0 27,661 1.0 24,654 9
Interest (Mote 13) 16,938 b 17419 6 19,228 g
Store Restructuring (Note 12) 71,288 2.3
Total Expenses 730,307 23.9 602,429 21.3 537,587 20.3
Pre-Tax Earnings 4,951 2 100,251 3.5 108,796 4.1
Income Tax Provision (Mo &) (1,536) 0 29.164 1.0 35,884 1.3
Net Earnings 5 6,487 2% $ 71,087 2.5% $ 74912 2.8%
Shares Outstanding —
Weighted Average 36.513 37,214 37,278
Earnings Per Share 5 A8 5 1.91 5 2.01
Retained Earnings (Notes 5 and 8) Per Per Per
Amount  Share Amount  Share Amount Share
Balance at Beginning
of Year $ 495,265 5 497,018 $ 440,334
MNet Earnings 6,467 5§ .18 71,087 5191 74912 %2.01
Cash Dividends (Mates 5 and 8 {20,020 $(.55) (19.334) % (.52) (18,228) & (49
Retirement of Common Stock (Mo 8) (1,546) (53,506)
Balance at End of Year % 480,186 5 495265 S 497,018
See sccompanying notes to imbobclued Bnsdcial statements.
Retail Sales and Square Footage Contractor Sales Per
Growth Trends Housing Start (in Thousands)
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Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

A restructuring charge of $71.3 million pre-tax was
announced by management on January 31, 1992, and
recorded in the fourth quarter. Lowe's earnings for fiscal 1991
were $6.5 million, or 5.18 per share. Without the restructur-
ing charge, reported after-tax earnings would have been $53.5
million, or $1.47 per share. The charge reflects the expected
costs and expenses incident to the component of Lowe's
expansion program which has earmarked 123 small stores
that are to be relocated into larger new facilities over tour
years. Also, 25 store locations are identified as being subject to
future consolidation and/or closing, including markets where
one |arger prototype store will rep|ar:e two small ones.

Lowe's began the large store prototype expansion
program in earnest in 1989, with 31 stores whose sales floors
average just under 48,000 square feet compared to the 1988
year-end average of 17,000, By the end of 1990, their first full
fiscal year, they were substantially outperforming chain
average in sales and operating earnings per store. As 1991
progressed, so did the performance of these stores and our
subsequently opened large prototypes, particularly relative to
our older, smaller stores. Careful and detailed analysis, on a
store-by-store basis, led to the restructuring program decision.

The restructuring charge is composed primarily of reduc-
tions in the carrying value of long-lived assets to their net
realizable value, principally real estate for owned locations,
certain leasehold improvements, fixtures and equipment. It
also includes a provision for relocation costs and expenses.

The expected impact on future results is to remove from
future earnings the dilutive effect of relocation costs and losses
from disposition of obsolete store properties. Although not
immediately apparent from the income statement, this
restructuring charge has no material impact on [iquidil:,,-. as
discussed in Cash Flow Analysis. However, this program to
relocate 123 stores will obviously have a material impact on
future uses of capital resources. For an overview, please see
the Letter to Shareholders.

Total sales in fiscal 1991 were $3,056,247,000 compared
with $2,833, 108,000 in fiscal 1990, This is an 8% increase, up
from the 7% increase achieved in 1990. Fiscal 199] fourth
quarter sales increased 21%. This improved sales trend is
continuing into the first quarter of 1992

Earnings were $6,487,000 in fiscal 1991 compared to
$71,087,000 last year, and $74,912,000 in 1989. Earnings per
share for the three years were $.18, $1.91 and $2.01, respec-
tively. Current year earnings were down due principally to
the one-time msh’ucturing Chargc as discussed above.

Retail sales increased 13% in both fiscal 1991 and 1990,
accounting for 69% of total sales in fiscal 1991, and 66% in
1990. Lowe's retail business has two major components: home
center { Do-1t-Yoursell) and consumer durables. Home center
sales increased 15% in 1991, led by gains in such product
categories as home decor and illumination, yard and garden,
hand and power tools, and bathrooms. Sales of durables
increased 6%, with electronics experiencing the greatest
growth. Fiscal 1990 increases were 15% for home center and
7% for durables.

Contractor sales continue to account for a smaller pﬂ!‘lion
of total sales each year. The 31% in 1991 was down from 34%
in 1990 and 38% in 1989. There are two principal reasons for
this long-term trend: the contractor market opportunity has

been declining, and the home center market and Lowe's
capacity to serve that market have been gn:w.ring. Sales to
contractors decreased 3% in 1990, and by another 2% in
1991. Building commodities and lumber sales were inevitably
affected by the 12% decrease in housing starts experienced in
Lowe's 20-state trading area in 1991. However, although
housing starts in our area have declined by an average 13%
per year from 1988 through 1991, our contractor sales per
housing starts have increased from $2,700 to $3,800 in those
fburyears. For related market trends and grnwlh rates, see
pages 14-23,

Sales from comparable stores (an average 287 stores open
more than a year with comparable square footage) were
$2,795,056,000, up 4% from the previous year.

Grovs margin for the year was 24.1% compared to our 1990
gross margin of 24.8% and our 1989 gross margin of 24.4%.
The 1991 decline had several causes, including ongoing
implementation of an everyday competitive price program,
higher costs associated with new distribution centers (34 basis
points) and increased inventory shrinkage (21 basis points).
In addition, there was a LIFO charge of $5,979,000 (22 basis
points) compared to a credit of $688,000 (2 basis points) in
1990. We experienced sharp luctuations in prices of lumber
and building commodities throughout 1991, with a significant
rise in the fourth quarter due to increased activity in home
building. We experienced slight deflation in other products,
pruducing a blended inflation rate of 1.26% cnmp.’u‘ed to an
average of .15% deflation for 1990. On a FIFO basis, fiscal
1991°s gross margin was 52 basis points lower than in 1990.

Selling, general and administrative (§Ge3A) expenses for
fizcal 1991 increased 9% from 1990 and 13% from 1989 to
1990. A key factor in the planned increases lor both years was
store salaries, up due to additional personnel associated with
our larger stores. Another factor was the increase in rent
expense attributable to our leasing approxamately half of the
new and relocated stores in 1991 and 1990, a change from
prinr years when most of our prupcﬂics were owned.

Depreciation was $58.3 million for fiscal 1991 compared to
$51.4 million in the prior year, reflecting our ongoing multi-
year expansion program. This represents a 13% increase
compared with an 11% increase in 1990, Part of the increase
in depreciation is attributable to sales register equipment,
fixtures and displays.

Employee retirement plans expense was up 10% in the year
because of an increase in the salalj.r base and more Emplq}'ees
participating in the plans. Since 1986, contributions to the
ESOP plan have remained at 13% of eligible compensation.

Net interest expense in fiscal 1991 was $16.9 million versus
$17.4 million in 1990 and $19.2 million in 1989. Contributing
to the reductions for the two years were lower levels of long-
term debt, and declining rates on a number of borrowings
with variable rates.

The income tax benefit of $1.5 million for fiscal 1991
resulted principally from credits from low-income housing
investments and the ESOP dividend pass-through deduction.
The effective tax rate for fiscal 1990 was 29.09%, down from
31.14% in fiscal 1989, due to favorable resolution of federal
income tax issues for the Company's fiscal years 1981 through

1986.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

Lowe's Companies, Inc. and Subsidiuy Companies

Diollars in Thonzands Fiscal %% Fiscal b Fiscal R
Fiscal years end on January 31 of following vear 1991 Total 1990 Total 1989 Total
Assets
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Nee 13) 5 26,088 1.8% 5 15,034 1.2% $ 555666 4.8%
Short-Term Investments 4,726 1 35,110 29 - =
Accounts Receivable — Net (Notes 15 & 14) 115,739 5.0 96,354 8.0 121,897 10.6
Merchandise Inventory (Now?) 602,795 41.8 460.804 383 407,677 355
Deferred Income Taxes (Nowe 6) 6,455 A - = 1,196 .
Other Assets 14,2756 1.0 9,159 B 9.610 g
Total Current Assets 770,078 53.4 616,461 51.2 595946 519
Property, Less Accumulated
Drepreciation (Nates 3 and 5) 612,955 42.5 541,464 45.0 507,811 44.3
Long-Term Investments
(Market Value $12,043) 11,350 B = = = e
Other Assets 46,845 3.3 45,127 3.8 43,637 38
Total Assets 51,441,228  100.0% $1,203,052 100.0% $1,147.394  100.0%
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current Liabilities:
Current Maturities of Long-Term
Debt (Note 5) 5 17,700 1.2% $ 10237 9% $ 10,658 9%
Short-Term Notes Payable (Mot 4) 143,833 10.0 53,914 4.6 1,994 2
Accounts Payable 307,814 214 186,860 15.56 210,197 18.3
Employee Retirement Plans (Now 7) 27,865 1.9 20,075 1.7 21,131 1.8
Accrued Salaries and Wages 30,339 2. 22.012 1.8 21,285 1.8
Other Current Liabilities 61,400 44 44,578 3.7 42,685 38
Total Current Liabilities H88,951 40.9 337,676 28.1 307,890  26.8
Long-Term Debt, Excluding Current
Marturities (Note 5) 113,650 7.5 159,204 13.2 167,89 14.6
Deferred Income Taxes (Note 6) 6,229 A 23,500 2.0 26,050 2.3
Acerued Store Restructuring (MNote 12) 653,844 4.5 = b = =
Total Liabilities 772,674 53.6 520,380 43.3 501,836  45.7
Commitments, Contingencies and
Litigation (Nate 1) = - - - = -
Sharcholders’ Equity (Notes 5, 8 and 9)
Common Stock — $.50 Par Value;
Fiscal Issued Ouistanding
1991 36,440,131 36,440,131
1990 36459754 36,459,754
1989 39,756,499 37,255,169 18,220 1.3 18,230 1.6 19,878 |
Capital in Excess of Par 170,148 11.8 169,177 14.1 178,733 15.6
Retained Earnings 480,186 33.2 495,265 41.1 497,018 433
Subtotal 668,664 6.4 682,672 56.7 695,629  60.6
Less Treasury Stock of
2 501,330 Shares at Cost - = - - aA0,071 4.3
Total Shareholders’ Equity 668,554 46.4 682,672 56.7 645,558  56.3
Total Liabilities and
Shareholders’ Equity 51,441,228 100.0% 1,205,052  100.0% 51,147,394  100.0%

See secompanying nates to consolidated linancial statements.



Balance Sheet Management

Lowe's Balance Sheet is a financial snapshot of the
company’s assets, liabilities and shareholders’ equity on the
last day of the fiscal year —in this case, January 31, 1992, The
balance sheet reveals the structural balance of Lowe's asset
components as well as the financing of these assets through a
flexible mix of equity, debt and accounts payable. Lowe's
balance sheet is best analyzed with an understanding of our
strategy of growth through larger sales floors and expanded
inventory assortments,

Our inventory turn rate (cost of sales divided by the
average ol quarterly ending inventory) has slowed from
4.8 cycles in 1989, to 4.5 in 1990 and to 4.4 cycles in 1991.
The decrease is noticeable but also understandable and
manageable.

Many factors can aflect the rate of inventory turnover. In
fiscal 1990 and 1991, our inventory “turns” were altected by
the general economic slowdown from the third quarter of 1990
through the second quarter of 1991, The turnover rate was also
affected by inventory investment in broadened product
assortments.

The largest single component of our assets is property.
Property, Less Accumulated Depreciation has increased 99%
over the last six years. During this same period, we have
added 4.4 million square feet of incremental space, more than
double the 1985 year-end level. In 1990 and 1991, real
property has increased less rapidly due to our leasing of
approximately hall of our new properties. Coinciding with
expansion, we have increased purchases of sales-floor-related
items such as cash register equipment, fixtures and displays.

We added to our balance sheet some long-term invest-
ments. These are financial instruments with maturities of one
to three years held as part of our cash management program
(see Note 1).

The major component in Other Assets is the net book
value of land and buildings from closed and relocated stores.
These are carried at their net realizable value. Another
component of other assets is an investment in low-income
housing projects which provides reasonably priced housing
pr]ncipa"y in communities that we serve, while T'udu{'ing our
income taxes.

Accounts payable is our major short-term financing
source. The balance of accounts payable on the last day of the
year was $210 million, $187 million and $308 million for fiscal
1989, 1990 and 1991, respectively. At the end of fiscal 1991,
vendors were financing 51.1% of our inventory, as compared
to 40.6% at the end of Rscal 1990, and 51.6% at the end of
fiscal 1989.

].nng-lerm debt decreased $38 million between
January 31, 1991 and January 31, 1992 and dropped as a

percent of total assets. This decline was primaril_v due to the

early retirement of $30 million of 12.75% notes as well as
normal debt retirements. In fiscal 1989 we accelerated the
retirement of $17 million of our 11.5% notes. Over the past
three years we have replaced long-term debt carrying double-
digit interest rates with short-term borrowings at much lower
rates (see Note 4). In fiscal 1992, we expect to take advantage
of the current lower interest rates to issue long-term debt.

Shareholders’ equity declined 2% from January 31, 1991
to January 31, 1992, as record cash dividends of $20 million
exceeded our reported net earnings, which were impacted by
the $71.3 million pre-tax r&stmi_‘l'ur'mg L‘ha.rge. However, as
discussed in the Cash Flow Statement analysis, most of the
store restructuring charge was a noncash accrual. In fact, the
company earned reasonably normal levels of cash with which
to operate and pay dividends.

Since balance sheet analysis traditionally views labilities
and equity as the sources ol financing for assets, it is dillicult
to visualize how a noncash acerual can "finance” anything. It
is easier if we use a cash Hlow perspective. Deferred taxes and
accrued restructuring costs are noncash adjustments to book
earnings, which in effect decrease stated shareholders’ equity.
These adjustments did not decrease the cash available 1o
finance assets. From a cash standpoint, our shareholders
“hinanced” a proportion of total assets equal to the sum of
sharcholders’ t:qu'lty. deferred taxes and accrued store
restructuring cost (51.3%).

During fiscal 1991, the tax effect of the restructuring
charge resulted in a deferred tax benefit, representing future
tax-deductible cxplmditun:s which substant iaily offset exist 'Lng
deterred tax liahilities.

The “Commitments, Contingencies and Litigation” line of
our balance sheet refers to outstanding purchase commit-
ments and il ig;ll ion. Lowe's was committed to invest appmxi—
mately $16.4 million for land, buildings and construction and
$4.7 million for equipment at January 31, 1992, as compared
to $1.1 million and $3.4 million at January 31, 1991. The
increase is due to a shift in the timing of new store openings.
Most of fiscal 1992's openings are scheduled tor the hirst half of
the year, whereas most 1991 openings occurred in the last half
of the vear. As in fiscal 1990 and 1991, many of fiscal 1992's
new dnd relocated stores will be leased rat i'u.‘:r than plll‘(‘hﬂ.-bﬁi.l
the rent for these proper ties will be ERPLHSUJ munlh[}.
Leasing is advantageous to Lowe’s because it does not require
a large up-front outlay of cash. Note 10 details the future
minimum lease payments for current operating leases. The
company is a defendant in legal proceedings considered to be in
the normal course of business, none of which, singularly or
collectively, are considered matenial to the company asa
whole. The Company is in full compliance with all federal
environmental laws and regulations.
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Consolidated Statements
of Cash Flows

Lowe's Companies, Inc. and Subsidiary Companics

Dallars in Thousands Fim]. ._im] Fiﬁcal
Fiscal Years End on Janoary 51 of Following Year 1991 1990 1989
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net Earnings 5 6487 $ 71,087 $ 74912
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Earnings to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation 58,298 51,431 46,134
Store Restructuring 69,219 — -
Increase {Decrease) in Deferred Income Taxes (25,258) 178 2403
{Gain) Loss on Disposition of Fixed and Other Assets 1,073 771 (1,758)
Cash Flow from Operations® % 109,819 $ 123,467 5121,691
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities:
Decrease (Increase) in Operating Assets:
Accounts Receivable — Net % (19,385) $ 25543 $ 5841
Merchandise Inventory (141,991) (53,127 (28,294)
Other Operating Assets (5,098) 683 (144}
Increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 120,954 (23.337) 6,241
Employee Retirement Plans 7790 3.780 20,694
Other Operating Liabilities 21,366 2,165 1317
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 93,455 § 79,174 5127246
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Decrease (Increase) in Investment Assets:
Short-Term Investments 5 30,384 % (35110) 5 —
Long-Term Investments (11,350} - —
Other Long Term Assets (70 {3.267) 880
Fixed Assets Acquired (133,846) (91,024) (91,673)
Proceeds from the Sale of Fixed and Other Long-Term Assets 3914 11,424 3.216
MNet Cash Used in Investing Activities 5(110,968) $(117,977) $(B7.577)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Sources:
Long-Term Debt Borrowings 5 — 3 — 5 6,000
Met Increase in Short-Term Debt Borrowings 89,919 51,920 1,738
Stock Options Exercised 1,223 6,004 2,023
Total Financing Sources $ 91,142 $ A&7,924 5 9,76l
Uses:
Repayment of Long-Term Debt $ (40.686) $ (13,823) $(29,893)
Cash Dividend Payments (20,020) (19.334) (18,228)
Common Stock Purchased for Retirement (1.869) (21,660) -
Common Stock Purchased for ESOP Contribution = {4,836) (6,000
Total Financing Uses (62,675) (59,653) (54,121)
Net Cash Provided by (Used) in Financing Activities $ 28,567 5 (1,729) $(44,360)
Met Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 5 11,054 $ (40,532) 5 (4.691)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 15,034 55,566 60,257
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 5 26,088 § 15034 $ 55,566

*Belore adjnstments for changes in related operating assets and operating linhilines
See accompanying notes to consolidated Anancial statements.



Cash Flow

Lowe's Cash Flow Statement classifies cash receipts
and payments according to their sources and uses in operating
activities, investing activities, and financing activities. [t also
considers changes in current assets and liabilities as part of
“Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities” However, our
major current assets and liabilities (receivables, payables, and
inventory) fluctuate from month-to-month as much as 30%
due to seasonal purchase trends and payment terms, and the
difference between two January 31 snapshots is not necessar-
ily representative of any ongoing trend. Therefore, we prefer
the subtotal "Cash Flow from Operations” as a more stable
measure of cash flow for year-to-year comparisons.

In analyzing cash flow for 1991, two unusual items stand
out. First, there is the one-time store restructuring charge of
$71.3 million. Most of this charge ($69.2 million) was an ac-
crual and did not represent a cash outlay. We therefore prop-
erly add it back to net earnings in order to compute cash flow.
Secundh,'. the reslrucluring ::hﬂrgl: caused deferred taxes to
change. Normally we experience a small impact from deferred
taxes, caused principally by the increase or decrease in
nondeductible acerued items. But in 1991, since the restruc-
turing charge was not deductible for income tax purposes, we
paid more cash for income taxes than our income statement
tax expense. This results in the $25.3 million decrease shown.

Other positive cash flow components are depreciation,
which is an income statement charge for which cash had al-
ready been expended in previous years; and any gain or loss
on asset disposition. These combine to total Cash Flow from
Operations. Cash flow increased 1.5% from 1989 to 1990 and
decreased 11.1% in 1991, The major factor in the 1991 de-
crease was a decline in the operating protit of our smaller
stores, which are more sensitive to fluctuations in the business
cycle, lumber and building matenial pricing, and competitive
pressures.

Our most important operating assets and habilities are
accounts receivable, merchandising inventory, and accounts
payable. As planned, inventory has increased steadily over
several years. However, the changes in accounts receivable
and accounts payable in the last two years have varied with
the level of sales in the month of January. In both January
1990 and January 1992, we experienced favorable weather
conditions and economic conditions, which gave us the G Or-
tunity for higher sales volumes. In January 1991, sales were
pnusually low because of the effect of the Middle East crisis
on our economy. At the end of January 1990 and 1992, con-
tractors made substantial purchases which were carried in our
accounts receivable balances. We also ewed our vendors
higher amounts due to significant increases in our purchases
of inventory. Since the opposite was true in January, 1991,

we experienced decreases in recervables and payables from
fiscal 1989 to 1990 and then offsetting increases in both items
in 1991. Additionally, accounts payable increased in 1991
related to our higher level of inventory.

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities, which in-
cludes the effect of the operating assets and liabilities and
the other factors discussed above, increased 18% from
1990 to 1991.

For readers who would like to compare our Cash Flow
with that of companies which report on a FIFO basis, we
present the following formula:

Begin with:  FIFO Pre-Tax Earnings
Adjust for: Actual Taxes (from the Earnings Statement)

Add: Depreciation and Restructuring
Adjust For: Deferred Taxes
Result: Comparative Cash Flow

In order to illustrate the other parts of the Statement of
Cash Flows, we present graphs A and B. For purposes of this
representation, we consider short-term and long-term invesi-
ments as part of cash, since they are both part of our cash
management program. Graph A, "Sources of Cash”, shows
that "Cash Flow from Operations Belore Changes in Operat-
ing Asscts and Liabilities” has been our largest source of fund-
ing for the past three years. In 1990 and 1991, another major
source of cash was our short-term debt borrowings.

In addition to sources of funds currently in use, we have
unused agreements and lines of credit aggregating $372 mil-
lion for short-term borrowing and letters of credit.

Graph B shows how our uses of cash have changed over
the past years. Two constant uses are fixed asset purchases
and dividend paymenis. Over the last 3 years, we have in-
vested $317 million in fixed assets. This is more than our total
fixed assets at the end of 1985, reflecting our continued com-
mitment to our expansion program. Dividends increased from
$18 million in 1989 to $20 million in 1991. Dividends per
share increased from $.49 1o $.55 from 1989 1o 1991,

The other material uses of cash have varied each year as
opportunities arose. In 1991, we took advantage of lower
interest rates by aceelerating the retirement of $30 million of
12.75% notes, temporarily replacing them with lower interest
short-term borrowings. In 1989, we accelerated the retirement
ol $17 million of our 11.5% notes in addition to normal debt
retirements. In 1988, 1990 and 1991 we repurchased a portion
of our common stock. In 1990 and 1991, the net change in
operating assets and liabilities was a use of cash, primarily due
to inventory, which increased as we broadened our product
lines of DIY-related merchandise in eur new, relocated and
remerchandised stores.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Lavwor’s Companies, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies
Fiscal Years Ended Janvary 31; 1992, 1991 and 1990

Note 1, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

The Company is a specialty retailer serving the do-it-yoursell home center business, the consumer durables business and
the building contractor business. Below are those policies considered to be significant.

Sedsiharien and Principles of Conwolidation — The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and
its subsidiaries, all of which are wholly owned. All material intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Caalr aned Canl Fguedvalenta — Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments
that are readily convertible to cash within three months of purchase.

fnveatments — The Company has a cash management program which provides for the investment of excess cash balances in
financial instruments which have maturities of up to three years. Investments that are readily convertible to cash within three
months of purchase are classified as cash equivalents. Investments with a maturity of between three months and one year are
classilied as short-term investments. These investments are stated at cost which approximates market. Investments with
maturities greater than one year are classified as long-term. These are stated at the lower of cost or market value. Interest is
acerued when earned on all investments. :

Acconairty Recevvable — The majority of the accounts receivable arise from sales to professional building contractors princi-
pally in the South Atlantic and South Central regions of the United States. The allowance for doubtful accounts is based on
historical experience and a review of existing receivables. Sales generated through the Company's private label credit card and
consumer installment sales are not rellected in receivables. These receivables are sold, without recourse, to an outside finance
COMPRnY.

Merchandie fnventory — Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined using the last-in, first-out
(LIFO} method. Included in inventory cost are administrative, warehousing and other costs directly associated with buying,
distributing and maintaining inventory in a condition for resale.

Praperty ard Depreciation — Property is recorded at cost. Costs associated with major additions are capitalized and depreci-
ated. Upon disposal, the cost of properties and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts with gains and
losses reflected in earnings.

Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives of the depreciable assets. Assets are generally depreciated on the
straight-line method. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or term of the
related lease.

{ther Aswelr — Real property representing closed stores arve included in other assets at their estimated net realizable value.

Leawer — Assets under capital leases are amortized in accordance with the Company's normal depreciation policy for
owned assets or over the lease term if shorter. The charge to earnings resulting from amortization of these assets is included in
depreciation expense in the consolidated financial statements,

Income Taves — Income taxes are provided for temporary differences between the tax and financial accounting bases of
assets and liabilities using the hability method under Financial Accounting Standard No. 109 (SFAS 109). The tax effects of
such dilferences are reflected in the balance sheet at the tax rates expected to be in effect when the differences reverse.

SFAS 109 was issued in February 1992 and adopted by the Company for Fiscal 1991 year-end reporting. Prior to the
adoption of SFAS 109, the Company accounted for income taxes under SFAS 96, the accounting standard superceded by
SFAS 109 The change to SFAS 109 had no elfect on the Company's financial position or results of operations.

Store Pre-opening Coute — Costs of opening new retail stores are charged to operations as incurred.

Empliyee Retirement Plans — Since 1957 the Company has maintained benefit plans for its employees as described in Note 7.
The plans are funded annually.

Farniags Per Share — Earnings per share are calculated on the weighted average shares of common stock and dilutive
common stock equivalents outstanding each year.

Note 2, Merchandise Inventory:

The Company uses the LIFQ method to determine inventory costs. Il the lirst-in, first-out (FIFO) method had been
used, inventories would have been $39.5 million, $33.5 million and $34.2 million higher at January 31, 1992, 1991 and 1990,
respectively. Under FIFO, net earnings would have been $53.8 million or 10 cents per share higher for Fiscal 1991, £.5 million
or | cent per share lower for Fiscal 1990 and $2.4 million or 7 cents per share higher For Fiscal 1989,




Note 3, Property and Accumulated Depreciation:
Net property includes $13.9 million, $15.6 million and $17.3 million in assets from capital leases for Fiscal 1991,
1990, and 1989, respectively.
Property is summarized below by major class:

Janua ry-3l.

1992 19491 19494
{Dallars in Thovsandsy
Cost:
Lan: £116.382 £ 99,127 § 94,081
Buildings 400877 371,947 354,300
Stoce and Office equipment J02,708 265,280 221311
Leasehold improvements 49,823 42,178 Ah4B0
Total cost B69, 79 776,632 706,178
Accumulated depreciation {256,835) (235,0648) (198,367)
Net propercty { Note 10) 5612,955 5541464 5507811

Note 4, Short-Term Borrowings and Lines of Credit:

The Company had agreements with a group of banks at January 31, 1992, which provided for short-term unsecured
borrowings of up to 560 million with interest at the lower of prime or bank transaction rate. These agreements were increased
to $100 million effective February 1, 1992,

In addition, several banks have extended lines of credit aggregating $75 million for the purpose of issuing documentary
letters of credit and standby letters of credit. Another $240 million is available for purpose ol short-term borrowings on a bid
basis from various banls.

The following relates to aggregate short-term borrowings from banks and to the use of the Company's commercial paper
in Fiscal 1991, 1990 and 1989:

Maximum Average Weighted
Category of Weighted Amount Amount Average
Aggregate Balance Average Chatstanding Chutstanding Interest Hate
Short-Term at end of Interest At Any During the During the
Borrowings Year Rate Month End Year (a) Year (h)
(Dallars in Thousands)
Fiscal 1991
Commercial paper £97,000 4.3% S 97,000 $54,097 5.4%
Bank borrowings 43,500 4.1 118,200 42,792 a5
Fiseal 1990
Commercial paper 30,000 7 72 466 35312 8.1
Bank borrowings S21,0:{H) 7245 10T, 000 44,496 8.0
Fiscal 1989
Commercial paper 71,004 17,573 0.5
Bank borrowings 5 55,000 525,038 9-5%
tuh Avernge of daily ending balamecs.
{h] Total interest expense an shars-term burrawings lor the ywir diviclnd s aversge amount austanding durng tha year
Note 5, Long-Term Debt:
e Interest Hates Year ol January 31,
Category Jdanuary 31, 19492 Marturity 1992 1991 1550
{Dallars i Thousandsh
Secured [Debi's
Insurance Company Notes 6.7 5% to KL 1998 5 2,721 ¥ 4747 £ 7378
Bank MNotes 7 H%e 1994 B3 17F 230
Industrial Revenue Bonds? 2, 10
Industrial Revenue Bonds 4.6 o 45607 1995 721 3,162 4,163
Other Notes 10 2000 892 1,106 904
Unsecured Dehi:
Insurance Company Motes 8.25% 1993 G0 31,200 31,800
Industrial Revenue Bonds .25 2000 13,086 13,963 15,285
Industrial Revenue Bonds® 3.75%" 2005 11,0040 11,700 11,700
Unsecured Notes 1 1.5%:" 1945 O7.813 arF.E0 27 . 7R9
Bank Motes® F 0% 1o 4,949 195 67965 H7 955 57,955
Capital Leases ( Mote 10) 7.15% to | 4.58% 2018 15,479 17,630 19,156
Total Long-Term Deb 131,350 169,441 178,554
Less Current Maturities 17,700 10,257 10,658
Long-Term Debt, Excluding
Current Maturities $113,650 $159.204 5167 896

*lnieiest rate varies as a percentuge al prime rate or other iserest indes

Inerest rates shaown are o ol Janoary 31, 1592,

i5
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The Company, in a public offering on April 1, 1985, issued 575 million of 11.5% unsecured notes at a discount of 426%,
The discount and issuance costs are being amortized over the life of the notes. In January 1987, the Company accelerated the
retirement of $30 million of this debt. During February and March of 1989, an additional $17.15 million retirement was
accelerated, incurring 5824 thousand of early retirement costs. The remaining notes may be redeemed in whole or in part,
without penalty, by the Company at any time after April 1, 1992 at the principal amount and acerued interest to the date fixed
tor redemption. The notes are governed by an indenture which, among other things, places certain restrictions on the issance
or guarantee of additional indebtedness.

On December 23, 1991, the Company accelerated the retirement of $30 million of 12.75% unsecured insurance company
notes incurring $1.149 million of early retirement costs,

At January 31, 1992, the Company had outstanding five interest rate swap agreements with financial institutions, having
a total notional principal amount of $22.3 million. Under four agreements with notional amounts of $5 million each, the
Company will pay interest at a fixed rate and will receive interest payments on the same notional amount at 85% of an interest
rate index. Under the remaining agreement, with an initial amount of $2.3 million, the Company effectively lowers the percent
of prime rate that the Company pays on a floating rate industrial revenue bond. The Company is exposed to credit loss in the
event of nonperformance by the banks and financial institutions. However, management does not anticipate such
nonperformance,

Dbt maturities, exclusive of capital leases (see Note 10), for the next five fscal years are as lollows (in millions): 1992,
$14.8; 1993, $15.1; 1994, $31.5; 1995, $36.5; 1996, $4.1.
Modes
! Real proguries pledged as collatersl for secured dabi had mei boak values (n millioas) af dansary 51, 1992, as follows: inssrance company notes - $23.6; bank nodes - §,6; indusinal revenue bonds

Bh6: anal other notes 6.8
T Dhuring Fiscal 1990 the Company repaid these induserial revenue bonds, which carried & Axed interes rate of 100625% amil & maturity date of 2014
' The Company tssued sioves 1o secure §1 1.7 milfien (loating raie moathly demand industrial revesue bonds in Fiscal 1986 The [nterest rates are tied 10 an Biterest index based on comparalile seeurities
wrmidedd &t par and nther pertinent Financlal market rates. With cenain restrictions the bonds can be converted to a fxed interest rate hased on a fixed interess index ar the Company's aption

* Tha umecurtd bank notes were obitained for the purposs of scquiring the Company’s common siock te fund the ESOP, These notes roquire that certain financial conditions be maintained. restrict
sthiar Borr VN and Bk 1 payient of ividorhs s SAD NG dtiriig i S8 o

Note 6, Income Taxes:

Fiscal years end on January 31 Fiscal 1991 Fiscal 199 Fiscal 19589
of following year Amount % Amount % Amount %
(Dollars in Thousands) Statutory Hate Reconciliation
Pre-tax earnings 5 4,951 100.0% S100,251 100.0% 108,79 1000026
Federal Income Tax at Statutory Rate 1.683 34.0 34,085 34.0 36,991 34.0
State Income Taxes — Net of Federal Tax Benefi 131 2.6 55 i 1,853 17
Low Income Housing Credits (1,9408) (38.5} (1,084) (1.1} (375 ()
ESOP Dividend Pass-Through (1,279} (25.8) (1.212) (1.2) {1,119) (1.0
Other (163) (3.3) (2.680) (2.7 (3462)  (3.2)
Total Income Tax Provision

{Benefit) % (1,536) (31.07% 5 29,164 29.1% 5 35,854 31.1%

Components of Income Tax Provision

Current
Federal 5 23,524 (1,531.5)% § 28903 99.1% £ 29370 86.7%
Suare 198 (12.9) 83 3 2,111 6.2
Total Current 23,722 (1.544.4) 28,986 29,4 31,481 929
Deferred
Federal (25,258) 1.644.4 178 B 1,706 50
State —_— — — A0 697 2.1
Total Deferred (25,258) 1,644.4 178 5 2,403 7.1
Total Income Tax Provision § (1.536) 100.0% £ 29,164 100, 0% $ 35,884 100.0%

Deferred income taxes arise principally from the temporary differences between financial reporting and income tax
reporting of depreciation and certain other accrued expenses. During Fiscal Year 1991, the tax elfect of the restructuring
charge resulted in a deferred tax benelit representing tuture tax deductible expenditures which substantially offset existing
deferred tax habilities.

The tax effect of the cumulative temporary differences between financial reporting and income tax reporting at
January 31, 1992 consists of the following:

Excess tax over book depreciation $ (29.525)
Acerued store restructuring costs 23.535
Other, net 5,764

Total net deferred tax asset § 226

The Company's consolidated Federal income tax returns for Fiscal 1987 and 1988 are currently under examination by the
Internal Revenue Service, a routine occurrence for companies of Lowe's size. No material adjustments are expected.

Note 7, Employee Retirement Plans:

The Company’s contribution to its Employee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP) is approved annually by the Board of Directors.
The ESOP covers all emplayees after completion of one year of employment and 1,000 hours of service during that year. The
Board authorized contribunions totalling 13% of eligible compensation for each of the Fiscal years 1991, 1990 and 1989.

During Fiscal 1989, to complete funding of the Company's Fiscal 1988 ESOP contribution, the Company purchased an
the open market and simultaneously contributed to the ESOP 221,600 shares at a cost of $6.0 million. In January 1990, the
Company prefunded, in cash, $1.0 million of its Fiscal 1989 ESOP contribution. During Fiscal 1990, the Board of Directors
approved a $65 million stock repurchase program, including up to $15 million for a partial prefunding of the Company’s Fiscal




1990 contribution to the ESOP (See Note 8). During Fiscal 199(), the Company purchased and contributed to the ESOP
238,920 shares costing $4.8 million. The remaining Fiscal 1990 contribution was made in cash during Fiscal 1991. As of
January 31, 1992, the Employee Stock Ownership Trust held approximately 24.1% of the outstanding common stock of the
Company and was its largest sharcholder,

The Board of Directors approves contributions to the Company's Employee Savings and Investment Plan (ESIP) each
vear based upon a matching formula applied to employee contributions. All employees are eligible to participate in the ESIP
on the first day of the month following completion of one year of employment. Company contributions to this plan for Fiscal
1991, 1990, and 1989 were $2.9, $2.7 and $2.6 million, respectively. The Company's commen stock is an investment option for
participants in the ESIP. As of January 31, 1992, the ESIP held 144,746 shares of the Company's outstanding common stock.

The Company has evaluated Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 106 ("Employers’ Accounting for
Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions”) and does not believe that the Company has any liability under this standard.

Note 8, Shareholders’ Equity:
Authorized shares of common stock were 120 million at Janvary 31, 1992, 1991 and 1990,
Transactions affecting the sharcholders’ equity section of the consolidated balance sheets are summarized as follows:

{In Thousands) Shares  {In Thousands) Sharcholders’ Equity
Capital in
Common Excess of Retained Treasury Total
Outstanding Stock Par Value Earnings Stock Equity
Balance January 31, 1989 37,139 519,819 5176,698 S440,5534 £(50,000) 5586851
Net Earnings 74,912 74,912
Cash Dividends (18,228) (18.228)
Stock Options Exercized (MNote ) 119 59 2.035 2,094
Treasury Stock Received for Exercise of Stock Options (3) (1) 71}
Balance January 31, 1990 37,255 19,878 178,733 497,018 (50,0713 645,558
Met Farnings T1.087 71.087
Tax Effect of Incentive Stock Options Exercised (MNote 9) 1017 Lo17
Cash Dividends (19.534) {19,334}
Stock Options Exercised (Note 9) 272 136 5,878 6,014
Stock Received for Exercise of Stock Options (1w (1
Treasury Shares Retired (1.251) (11,532) {37.298) H0.081
Shares Purchased and Retired (1,067) (533) (4,919) (16,208) {21,660)
Balance January 51, 1991 6,460 18,230 169,177 495,265 NIL 6R2,672
Met Earnings 6,487 6,487
Tax Elfect of lncentive Stecl Options Exercised (Mote 9) 6l 6l
Cash Dividends (20,020) (20,020)
Stock Options Exercised (Note 9) 58 29 1,269 1,298
Stock Received for Exercise of Stock Options {3 (1 (13) {61y (75)
Shares Purchased and Retired {75) (38) {346) {1,485) {1.869)
Balance January 31, 1992 H, 440 £18,220 S170,148 $480,186 NIL 668,554

The Company has & million authorized shares of preferred stock (35 par), none of which have been issued. The preferred
stock may be issued by the Board of Directors (without action by shareholders) in one or more series, having such voting
rights, dividend and liquidation preferences and such conversion and other rights as may be designated by the Board of
Directors at the time of issuance of the preferred shares.

On September 9, 1988, the Board of Directors adopted a shareholder rights plan which provides for a dividend distribution
of one preferred share purchase right on each outstanding share of common stock. Each purchase right will entitle
shareholders to buy one unit of a newly authorized series of preferred stock. Each unit is intended to be the equivalent of one
share of common stock. The purchase rights will be exercisable only if a person or group acquires or announces a tender offer
tor 20% or more of Lowe's common stock. The purchase rights do not apply to the person or group acquiring the stock. The
purchase rights will expire on September 19, 1998.

Provisions of Nerth Carolina law enacted during Fiscal 1990 eliminated the concept of treasury shares. The Company held
2,501,530 shares at a cost of $50.1 million at July 31, 1990, the effective date of the new law. The Company has retired these
treasury shares held at July 31, 1990 and subsequently has begun to retire certain shares as they are repurchased (See below).

In September 1990, the Board of Directors approved a $65 million stock repurchase program, primarily on the open market,
of the Company’s common stock, including up to $15 million for a partial prefunding of the Company's Fiscal 1990
contribution to the Employee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP), with the remaining $50 million allocated to repurchase stock to
be retired (authorized but unissued). The first 401,000 shares were repurchased at a cost of $8.2 million and were retired.
Subsequent repurchases were at a ratio of 26.4% allocated to the ESOP and 73.6% retired. At January 31, 1991, the Company
had repurchased 1,306,000 shares at a cost of $26.5 million or an average of $20.29 per share. Of these shares repurchased,
238,920 shares at a cost of $4.8 million have been contributed to the ESOP. There were no other purchases under the program
prior to its expiration on September 9, 1991,

In October 1991, the Board of Directors authorized the expenditure of up to $50 million for the purchase, primarily in the open
market, of the Company's common stock. The stock will be retired (authorized but unissued). As of January 31, 1992, the Company
had repurchased 75,002 shares at a cost of $1.9 million or an average of $24.92 per share. This program will expire on May 29, 1992.

35
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Note 9, Stock Options:

During Fiscal 1985, shareholders approved a stock option plan under which incentive and nonqualified stock options may
be granted to key employees. One million common shares were reserved for option purposes. Options granted are exercisable
from the date of grant through expiration dates which range from 1991 through 1994, At January 31, 1992, there were
362,610 shares available For grant.

Option information is summarized as follows:

Option Price

Key Employee Stock Option Plan Shares Per Share
{1n Thoosands)

Oustanding January 51, 1989 340 %16.25, $21.575, 525.575
Granted 253 Variable 1o 25.50
“ancelled or expired (7 Variable to 25.50
Exercised (115 16.25 va 24.45
Outstanding January 31, 1990 466 16.25, 21.575, 23.375, Variable to 2550
Cancelled or expired (3) Variable to 25.50
Exercised (272 10,79 1o 24.43
Outstanding January 31, 1991 191 16.52, 21.575, Variable to 25.50
Cancelled or expired (2} 21.5375
Exercised (57) 16.25 to 235 8]
Ouistanding January 31, 1992 132 $16.25, Variable to $25.50

Prior to Fiscal 1989, all options granted were incentive options whereby the option prices were at least equal to the fair
market values of the stock at the grant dates. During Fiscal 1989, all options granted were adjustable nonqualified options
exercisable at a maximum price of $25.50 per share. The actual option price, if lower than $25.50, is determined on the date
each option is exercised according to a formula stipulated by the Plan.

During Fiscal 1989, shareholders approved a Non-Employee Directors’ Stock Option Plan. This Plan provides that
adjustable nonqualified options representing one thousand shares of Lowe’s common stock will be granted to each outside
Director following the Annual Meeting in 1989, 1990, 1991, 1992 and 1993. Fifty thousand shares of common stock are
reserved to fullill the requirements of this Plan. Options representing seven thousand shares were granted under this Plan in
each of Fiscal 1989, Fiscal 1990 and Fiscal 1991, of which options representing one thousand shares have been exercised. The
maximum apt'icn price per share was $25.50 for Fiscal 1989, $43.625 for Fiscal 1990 and $34.50 for Fiscal 1991,

Incentive stock options which are sold by the optionee within two years of grant or one year of exercise result in a tax
deduection for the Company equivalent 1o the taxable gain recognized by the optionee. For financial reporting purposes, the tax
effect of this deduction is accounted for as a credit to capital in excess of par value rather than as a reduction of income tax
expense, Such optionee sales resulted in a tax benefit to the Company of approximately $61 thousand and $1.017 million
during Fiscal years 1991 and 1990 respectively.

Note 10, Leases:

The future minimum rental payments required under capital and operating leases having initial or remaining noncancellable
lease terms in excess ol one year are summarized as follows:

Operating Leases Capital Leases

Fiscal Year Real Estate Equipment Real Estate Equipment Total
{ Bollars in Thousanda)d
1992 $ 14,181 $ 4,662 $ 1,358 $2.807 $ 23,098
1993 15,101 2,337 1,329 1,450 20217
1994 14,254 480 L3135 339 16,386
1995 13.571 262 1,205 r 14913
1994 12,986 106 1,20 - 14,301
Later years 174,900 m 25,660 - 198,560
Total Minimum Lease Payments §244,793 S7.847 530,072 54,7635 287475
Total Minimum Capital Lease Payments $34.855
Less Amount Rcl:l.l‘l‘.'ﬁd.‘l'llllllb" Interest 19,356
Present Value of Minimum Lease Payments 15479
Less Current Maturities 24869
Present Value of Minimom Lease

Payments, Less Curvent Maturities 812,611

Rental expenses under operating leases for real estate and equipment were $15.1 million, $11.8 million and $8.8 million in
Fiscal 1991, 1990 and 1989, respectively.

The Company leases store facilities under agreements with original terms generally of twenty years. Generally these
agreements provide for contingent rental based on sales performance in excess of specified minimums. To date, contingent
rentals have not been significant. The leases typically contain provisions for four renewal options of five years each. Certain
equipment is leased by the Company under agreements ranging from two to five years. These agreements typically contain
renewal options providing for a renegotiation of the lease, at the Company's option, based on the fair market value at that time.



Note 11, Commitments, Contingencies and Litigation:

The Company had purchase commitments at January 31, 1992 of approximately $16.4 million for land, buildings and
construction of facilities, and $4.7 million for equipment.

The Company had commitments at January 31, 1992 to invest approximately $4.3 million in various Low Income Housing
Projects.

The Company has entered into preliminary operating lease agreements for nine new store properties. The terms and
conditions of these leases have not been finalized. The minimum lease payments will be computed based on a formula which
takes into account, among other items, the construction costs and borrowing costs of the lessor.

The Company is a defendant in legal proceedings considered to be in the normal course of business and none of which,
singularly or collectively, are considered material to the Company as a whole. Potential hability in excess of the Company's
sell-insured retention under these proceedings is covered by insurance.

Note 12, Store Restructuring:

In Fiscal 1991, the Company recorded a one-time pre-tax fourth quarter charge of $71.3 million for the expected costs
and expenses required to accelerate the Company’s conversion from a chain of small stores to a chain of large stores. The
restructuring charge is composed primarily of write-downs of long-lived assets to their net realizable value, principally real
estate for owned locations, certain leasehald improvements, fixtures and equipment. It also includes relocation costs and
expenses. The charge includes stores relocated under the restructuring plan in the fourth quarter of Fiscal 1991 and those

scheduled for closing and relocation through Fiscal 1995.

Note 13, Other Information:

The allowance for doubtlul accounts, which is netted with accounts receivable in the consolidated balance sheets, is summa-
rized as follows:
Years Ended Janvary 31, 1972 19491 (K1)

([ ®albars in Thousandsy

Allowance for Donbtlul Accounts:

Balance Brgiuning of Year % 330 5 4,069 5 4,179
Addiians Cll.:u‘b'r_'d 1o E.‘tpt‘llﬁt 4,518 4,067 |
Deductions lor Accounts Charged OF (3814} {4.727) (3.881)
Balance End of Year £ 4,103 $ 3,399 5 4,069
Net interest expense is comprised of the following:
Years Ended January 31, 1992 19491 1949
Long-Term el 514,467 Sle 424 518,095
Short-Term Dbt 5317 65,426 4.074
Amortization all Loan Costs 125 104 243
Cost of Early Debt Retirement 1.149 - B2
Short-Term Interest Income {3,006) (4.3949) {1,787}
Interest Capitalizecd (1, 114) 1,142y (2,201
Met Interest Expense 516,958 517419 519,228
Cash and cash equivalents are comprised of the following:
As al January 31, 1992 1951 1990
Cash L12.685 5 8113 515,156
Cash Equiva lents 13,403 6,921 40,410
Total 526,088 15,034 555,566
Supplemental disclosures of cash How information:
Yenrs Ended January 31, 19592 1991 19940
Cash Puid Tor [nterest

{Met of Amount Capitalized) 22,162 § 15256 5 25,944
Cash Paid for Income Taxes 521,008 § 25629 5 3.061
Mon-cash investing and financing activities:
Fixed Assers I.'I.i'ilLl.lﬂ.‘fJ Under

Capital Leases $ 2,595 $ 34557
Fixed Asscts Acquired by

Like Kind l'.'.xq:lltullgt.' 5.290 - —
Stock Purchased Then Contributed

1o ESOP {Note 7) - 4,836 5 6,000
Commeoan Stock Received lor Excercise

of Stock (.-]|:|I'||.:|||; 75 10 5 71
MNotes Received in Exchange

§ 4TS 5 4071 —

for Property

Supplemental disclosure of operating expenses:
Advertising expenses were $61.8, $56.3 and $48.3 million for Fiscal 1991, 1990 and 1989, respectively.

Note 14, Subsequent Events:

Subsequent to January 31, 1992, the Company entered into an agreement to sell an undivided fractional interest in a
designated pool of receivables. Under the agreement, an interest in new receivables may be sold as collections reduce previ-
clusl:,,-' sold interests.



Selected Financial Data

Lowe's Companies, Ine, and Subsidiary Companies
(Dollars in thousands, except per shace data)
Fiscal years end on January 31 of

following year (unaudited) 1991 1990 1989 1988 1987
Selected Income Statement [Data:
Met Sales $3.056,247 $2.833.108 52,650,547 £2.516,879 £2,442177
Earnings Before
Cumulative Effect of a
Change in Accounting
Principle 6,487 71,087 74912 65,201 55,954
Cumulative Effect on Prior
Years of a Change in
Accounting for Income
Taxes 5,226
Met Earnings G487 71,087 74,912 69,201 al, 180
Earnings Per Common Share:
Belore Cumulative Effect of
a Change in Accounting
Principle A8 191 2.01 1.83 1.41
Met Earnings A8 1.91 2.01 1.85 I.54
Dividends Per Share b3 B 5 52 -3 A9 b3 Af 5 A3
Selected Balance Sheet Data:
Total Assets $1,441,228 $1.203,052 $1,147,394 $1,085,797 $1,027,329
Long-term Debt, Including
Current Maturities £ 131,350 § 169441 § 178.56564 £ 202447 $ 197,893
Selected Quarterly Data (Unaudited)”
Three Months Ended January 31 Oectober 31 July 31 April 30
Fiscal 1991
Met Sales ST09.613 S709.613 863,009 $693.351
Gross Margin 170,539 188,485 208,816 l67.418
MNet Earnings ([oss) {43,265) 12,992 25.284 11,476
Earnings (Loss) Per Share £ (L1 b3 36 5 47 5 3l
Fiscal 1990
Met Sales 586,024 708,124 818,062 £720,908
Gross Margin 152,409 174.751 202,337 173,183
Met Earnings 5,064 14,081 29,960 21,982
Earnings Per Share § 14 - T 5 B0 ] 59
Fiseal 1989
Met Sales £599,549 &702.670 746,196 602,132
Gross Margin 146,074 168,336 183,770 148,205
Met Earnings 10,121 20.277 29,928 14,586
Earnings Per Share 5 27 - A4 & A0 ] a9

*LIFO Adjustment:

Fiscal 1991 = The total LIFO effcet for the year was a charge of $6.0 million. A charge of 3.9 million was made against eamings through the first nine months, resulting in &
fourth quarter charge of $5.1 million. Through the year the Campany experienced slight deflation in products ather than building commaodities. In building commaosdities,
particulardy lumber, prices had fsen sharply in the second quarter, then dropped as expected diring the third and early fourth quarters, The Company expected this pattern
1o cantinue through the end of the year, however increased demand for lumber drove prices apward at the end of the year resulting in the fourth quarter adjustment.

Fiscal 1990 — The total LIFO effect for the year was a credit ol §.7 million. A charge of $2.6 million against earnings was made through the first nine months, resuliing in a
fourth quarter credit of $3.3 million. During the frst three quarters, the Company was experiencing inflasion in basically all its products. However, in the fourth quarter,
prices for building commodities foll dramatically due to decreased demand resulting from the economic slowdawn. This created net deflation for the year and resulted in the

large credit in the fourth quarter.

fiscal 1989 — The total LIFO effect for the vear was a charge of $3.5 million. A charge of $5.4 million against earnings was made through the first

fourth quarter credit of 51.9 million.
Store Restructuring

nine months. resulting in a

Charge:
During the fourth quartor of Fiscal 1991, the Company recorded & $71.3 million pre-tax charge to earnings related 1o the planned conversion from a chain of small stores 1o a
chain of large stores. (See Mote 12 to the Consolidated Financial Statements)



Stock Performance

Lowe's Quarterly Stock Price Range and Cash Dividend Payment

Fiscal 1991 Fiscal 1990 Fiscal 1989
High Low Dividend I'th Law Dividend Hig]‘l Low Dividend
lst Cuarter 534 1/4 $251/8 5.13 535 3/8 52512 5.13 525 34 522118 512
2nd Quarter 36 58 28 7/8 A4 49 5/8 29 3/8 13 27 14 24 12
Jrd Quarter 3478 24 A4 30 1/2 19 1/8 A3 32 1/8 26 3/8 A2
dth Quarter 541 525 7/8 5.14 527 78 518 3/8 .13 531 14 $287/8 513
Somrcar T Wall Nteear Saermun!
Monthly Stock Price and Trading Volume Fiscal 1991
Fiscal 1991 Fiscal 1990
Shares Shares
High Low Traded High Low Traded
February 331 1.2 $25 1/8 2,281,900 527 34 £251/2 821,300
March 32172 28 2,047,100 34172 2534 5,879,600
April 34 1/4 31 1/8 2,033,000 35 3/8 32 3175900
My 34 12 28 7/8 2,352,200 47 172 34 3/8 4,611,800
June 36 5/8 31 3/8 1,484,600 49 5/8 44 7/8 4,960,400
July 3512 32 34 1,229,800 49172 29 38 9,130,800
August 34 7/8 30 2,679,200 30172 2078 4,738,900
September 3414 32 1,220,800 24 5/8 19 1/8 2,821,500
Oetober 33 3M 24 4,302,900 2178 19 1/8 3,153,600
MNovember 30172 26 3/8 3,197,800 21 34 18 38 2,503,800
December 34 1/8 25718 3,548,200 25 14 2034 2,034,100
January 541 533 5,026,100 $277/8 $23 1.2 1,904,000
Batwrcar e IFall Ktrved Joisst]
I'ﬁgh—]_ﬂW Stock Price® Dullars; Adjusted for All Splits
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Quarterly Review of Performance

Earnings Statement

Dollars in Thowsumds Fiscal 1991 Fiscal 1990
Quarter Ended 1/31/92 10/31/91 7Ia1mal 4/30/91 1/31/91 10/31/90 7IA1/90 4/ 30/590
Net Sales £709.613 S790,274 S863,009 $693,351 586,024 £708,124 5818,052 720,908
FIFD Gross Margin 175,602 187 881 209,110 168,644 149,115 174,751 203,510 174,616
LIFO Credit (Charge) {5,063) 604 {294} {1,226) 5,294 - (1.173) (1,433)
LIFC Gross Margin 170,639 188,485 208,816 167,418 152,409 174,751 202,337 173,185
Expenses:

S5 G&A 157,647 143,030 146,357 126,308 120,270 130,191 136,378 119,079
Depreciation 15,603 14,471 14,258 13,966 13,673 13.105 12,481 12,172
Employee Retirement Plans 7668 097 8,145 6851 6,770 7005 7500 386
Interest 5255 4,019 3.801 3,863 4712 4,786 4,140 3,781
Store Restructuring 71,288 - = - - - - -
Total Expenses 237 461 169,517 172,541 150,988 145,425 155,087 160,499 141,418
Pre-Tax Earnings (Loss) (66,922) 19,168 36,275 16,430 6,984 19,664 41,838 31,765
Income Tax Provision {23,657 ) 6,176 10,991 4,954 1,920 5,083 11,878 9,783
Net Earnings (Loss) (43,265) 12,992 25,284 11,476 5064 14,081 29,960 21,982
Earnings (Loss) Per Share £ (1.19) 5 13y 5 5HY 5 al 5 A4 S .38 3 B0 % a9
2 Quarterly Earnings Statement Changes

Changes From Same Quarter Previous Year, m Nearest Tenth Percent Fiscal 1991 Fiscal 1990
Chaarter Ended 1/31/92 10431791 731l 4/30/91 1/31/91 105190 7131/90 4/30/90
MNet Sales 21.1% 11.6% 5.5% (5.8)% (2.3)% 8% 9.6% 19.7%
FIFD Gross Margin 17.8 i 28 (3.4} a4 3.2 9.5 16.0
LIFO Credit (Charge) 2537 1000 (74.9) (14.4) (7. { 100,00} (42.9) (39.2)
LIFO Gross Margin 11.9 i 5.2 (3.3) 4.5 3.8 10.1 16.9
Expenses:

S5G&A 14.4 9.9 T 6. 9.3 122 16,1 14.4
Depreciation 14.1 104 14.2 14.7 10.6 122 1005 12.7
Employee Retirement Plans 15.3 1.3 8.6 7.3 12.5 10,4 13.7 12.1
Interest 11.5 (16.0) (8.2) 2.2 19.9 1.6 (11.2) {36.2)
Store Restructuring MM - = - ~ - - =
Total Expenses 63.3 9.2 7.5 6.8 9.9 11.8 14.6 11.8
Pre-Tax Earnings (Loss) (10558.2) (2.5) (13.3) (48.3) (49.5) {33.6) (4.3) 46.3
Income Tax Provision (1332.1) 10.6 (7.5 (9.4} {47.5 (40.2) (15.8) 374
Net Earnings (954.4)% (7.7 Y% (15.6)% (47.8)% (60.0)% (30.67% J% 50.7%
3 Quarterly Earnings Statement Percentages

Percent of Sales to Mearest Hundrodih: Income Tax = % of Pre-Tax Famangs Fiscal 1991 Fiscal 1990
Ouarier Enced 1/31/92 10/31/91 7I31/91 4/30/91 1/31/91 10/31/90 7131/90 4430490
MNet Sales 100L00% 100.00% 100,00 % 100.00% 10000 1 00.00%: 100.00% 1 0H.00%
FIFO Gross Margin 24,74 23.77 2405 2435 2545 24.68 24,88 24,22
LIFO Credit (Charge) .71 08 (.03) (.18) 10 - {.15) .20)
LIFO) Gross Margin 24.05 25.85 24.20 24.15 26.01 24.68 24.75 24.02
Expenses:

SGEA 19.39 18.09 16.97 18.22 2053 18.358 .66 16.52
Drepreciation 2,20 1.83 |.65 201 2.33 1.85 1.55 1.69
Emplayee Retirement Plans 1.08 99 94 09 .16 99 et .89
Interest 74 5l A4 a6 B0 O3 .5l Al
Store Restructuring 10.05 - - - - - - -
Total Expenses 35.46 21.42 20,00 21.78 24.82 21.90 19.62 19.61
Pre-Tax Earnings (Loss) {9.43) 243 4.20 237 139 278 511 441
Income Tax Provision 35.35 32.22 30,30 a0.15 27 A9 28.39 28.39 S0.80
Net Earnings (Loss) (6.10)% 1.64% 2.95% 1.66% B6% 1.99%, J66% 3.05%




Customer Sales Profile

1985-1990 Sales and Earnings *

Dollars in Millions. Rounded Totals Fiscal 1991 Fiscal 1990  Percentof Towl Year — A Six-Year Average
Change Sales % Total Sales % Total
lst Quarter
HC'! + 7% 53754 4% % 3498 48%
Ch* (7 113.2 16 122.1 17
BC* (18) 204.8 30 2490 35
Totals {4) 693.4 100 7209 100
2nd Quarter
HC +12 456.2 53 407.9 50
CcDh +9 141.7 & 129.5 16
BC {6) 265.1 | 280.7 e =
Totals + 5 863.0 100 818.1 100 b
3rd Quarter | i
HC +18 4299 54 364.6 5l
cD +13 101.8 15 89.8 13 22 Fourth
BC + 2 258.6 33 9253.7 36 January 31 12
:::als +12 790.3 100 708.1 100 Sales Quarter Earsings ]
Qumer bl 1= not in 1 ' i
HC +26 379.5 54 301.2 52 h:'j:flfsc rhcl :c;jluu;{:?:rlimg'i:jut:;?jﬁmr::
Ch +14 108.0 15 95.0 & results.
BC +17 2221 3l 189.8 32
Totals +21%  $709.6 100% $586.0 100%
! HC: sales 1 home conter custamers {cash or nen-recourse credin},
¥ CIe sales 1o consuimer duralles custoemers (cash or mon-recourse credii)
' BC: sales to building contractors {Lawse's-extended crmbit)
Store Sales Profile
Diallars in Millions, Rounded Totals Fiscal 1991 Fiscal 1990
% of % of
Change Sales Total Sales Total
1st Quarter
Comparable Stores ' (7 1% $633.8 919 $683.9 95%
New Projects * +«108 59.2 9 284 4q
Closed Stores = A = 8.6 1
Total Sales ) 693.4 100 720.9 100
2nd Quarter
Comparable Stores + 2 792.2 92 774.2 95
MNew Projects + 94 70.8 8 36.6 4
Clozed Stores = - = 7.3 |
Total Sales + 5 863.0 100 518.1 100
drd Quarter
Comparable Stores + 9 735.3 93 6764 96
MNew Projects +101 55.0 poi 7.3 4
Closed Stores = - = 4.4 =
Total Sales + 12 7903 1040 708.1 100
4th Quarter
Comparable Stores + 16 0337 89 5452 93
New Projects +116 74.8 11 3.6 6
Closed Stores - 1.1 - 6.2 |
Total Stores + 21% 5709.6 100% 5586.0 100%

! Comparable siores: stofes open more than 1 jear with comparable square lostage,

¥ Mew progecin: Mew stores open less than | vear amd stores that have been retrolitied or rebocared

withim the pas 12 months
Mate: Prior years will not be restated.
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Lowey Board of Directors

William A. Andres

Diirector since 1986, age 65. Chairman of Committee of Outside Directors, Member of Audit Committee and Compensation/Employee Stock
Option Committee of the Company. Previously Chairman of the Board (1976-1983), Chairman of Executive Committee (1983-1985) of Dayton
Hudson Corporation (Retail Chain), Minneapolis, Minn. (Mr. Andres retired in September, 1985.) Other directorships: Jostens, Inc.,
Minneapolis, Minn., since 1985; Scott Paper Company, Philadelphia, Penn., since 1983; The St. Paul Companies, St. Paul, Minn., since 1977;
International Multifoods, Ine., Minneapolis, Minn., since 1978; Hannalord Bros., Scarborough, Me., since 1986.

John M. Belk

Directorsince 1986, age 72. Me mberof Audit Committee, Compe nsatinn.l'E-mplq'!.rec Stock Option Committee and Committee of Qutside Directors
afthe Company. Chairman of the Board, Belk Stores Services, Inc. { Retail Department Stores), Charlotte, W.C., since 1980, Other directorships:
Coca-Cola Bottling Company Consolidated, Charlotte, N.C., since 1972; Southern Radio Corp., Charlotte, N.C., since 1963; Chaparral Steel,
Midlothian, Tex., since 1987,

Gordon E. Cadwgan

Director since 1961, age 78. Chairman of Audit Committee, Member of Compensation/Employee Stock Option Committee, Executive Committee
and Committee of Outside Directors of the Company. Trustee and Financial Consultant, affiliated with Tucker, Anthony, Inc., Boston, Mass,,
since 1979, Other directorships: Third Century Fund, Inc., Providence, R.1, since 1981,

Leonard G. Herring

Director since 1956, age 64, President and Chiel Executive Officer since 1978, Chairman of Non-Employee Directors' Stock Option Committee,
Member of Executive Commirttee and Government/Legal Affairs Committee of the Company. Other directorships: First Union Corporation,
Charlotte, N.C., since 1986; First Brands Corporation, Danbury, Conn., since 1987,

Petro Kulynych

Director since 1952, age 70. Member of Compensation/Employee Stock Option Committee, Executive Committee and Government/Legal Affairs
Committee of the Company, having previously served as Managing Director (1978-1983). (Mr. Kulynych retired in December, 1983.) Other
directorships: Local Board, Wachovia Bank of North Carolina, N.A., North Wilkesboro, N.C., since 1988; Carolina Maotor Club, Ine. (Vice

Chairman).

Russell B. Long

Director since 1987, age 73. Chairman of Government/Legal Affairs Committee, Member of Compensation/Employee Stock Option Committee
and Committee of Outside Directors of the Company. Partner, Long Law Firm (Attorneys-at-Law), Washington, D.C., since 1988; previously
Partner, Finley, Kumble, Wagner, Heine, Underberg, Manley, Myerson & Casey (Attorneys-at-Law), Washington, D.C., during 1987, Other
directorships: Catalyst Vidalia Corp., Vidalia, La., since 1989; Metropolitan Life Insurance Company, New York, N.Y., since 1987; The New York
Stock Exchange, Inc., New York, N.Y,, since 1987, Other: United States Senator 1948-1987; Member, Senate Finance Committee 1952-1987
{Chairman 1965-1981}.

Robert G. Schwartz

Director since 1973, age 64. Chairman of Compensation/Employee Stock OptionCommittee, Member of Audit Committee and Committee of
Outside Directors of the Company. Metropolitan Life Insurance Company, New York, N.Y., - Chairman of the Board since 1983, President and
Chief Executive Officer since 1989, Other directorships: Potlatch Corporation, San Francisco, Calif,, since 1973; Communications Satellite
Corporation, Washington, D.C., since 1986; Mobil Corporation, New York, N.Y., since 1987; The Reader’s Digest Association, Inc., Pleasantville,
M.Y., since 1989; Consolidated Edison Company of New York, New York, N.Y., since 1989; CS First Boston, Inc., New York, N.Y., since 1989

Jack C. Shewmaker

Director since 1985, age 54. Member of Compensation/Employee Stock Option Committee, Executive Committee and Committee of Outside
Directors of the Company. Director of Wal-Mart Stores, lnc. {Discount Retail Chain), Bentonville, Ark., since 1977, having previously served
as Vice Chairman of the Board (1984-1988), President and Chiet Operating Officer (1978-1984) of that company. (Mr. Shewmaker retired in
February, 1988.) Other directorships: Vons Companies, Ine., El Monte, Calif., since 1988,

Robert L. Strickland

Director since 1961, age 61. Chairman of the Board since 1978, Chairman of Executive Committee, Member of Government/Legal Afairs
Committee and Non-Emplovee Directors’ Stock Option Committee of the Company. Other directorships: Summit Communications, Atlanta,
Ga., since 1987; The Wholesale Club, Indianapolis, Ind., 1989-1991; Revelstoke Companies, Inc., Calgary, Alberta, Canada, 1978-1988; T. Rowe
Price Associates, Inc., Baltimore, Md., since 1991,



Lowes Leadersbp

Executive Management

L.W. Davis — Senior Vice President Real Estate

Wendell R. Emerine — Executive Vice President/Sales/
Store Dperaticrns

Leonard G. Herring — President and Chief Executive Officer

Robert L. Strickland — Chairman of the Board

Robert L. Tillman — Executive Vice President — Merchandising

Harry B. Underwood, 11 - Senior Vice President and
Treasurer (CFO)

Departmental Vice Presidents

Frank A. Beam — Store Operations

Gregory M. Bridgetord — Merchandising

Ralph G. Buchan, Jr. — Advertising

F. Don Davis — Retail Sales Promotion

Frank W. Dooley — Corporate Information Services
John L. Eikenberry — Internal Audit

A. Robert Gresham, 111 — Contractor Sales Promotion
R. Vaughn Hayes — Merchandising

A. Lee Herring, 11 - ﬁ"lerr::]'l;mdiﬁing

Other Corporate Officers

Richard D. Elledge — Vice President/Chief Accounting
Officer, Assistant Secretary

Arnold N. Lakey — Vice President — Credit Management

W. Nathan Mitchell — Assistant Secretary/ Senior Director/
Trades Payﬂhle

Kenneth A. WNeal — Assistant Treasurer

Leshie G. Shell, 111 — Controller

John W. Vining, Jr. — Vice President — Administration

William C. Warden, Jr. — Assistant Secretary

Karen R. Worley — Assistant Controller

W. Cliff Oxtord — Corporate Relations

Ronnie L. Perry — Distribution

John V. Raley — Store Operations

David E. Shelton — Store Operations Support / Training
Larry D. Stone — Merchandising

Charles E. Taylor — Store Operations

Gregory J. Wessling — Merchandising

William L. White — Store Operations

Investor Information

Dividend Declaration Dates
Usually the middle of Apnl, July,
October and January.

Dividend Payment Dates
Usually the last of April, July,
October and January.

Dividend Disbursing Agent
Wachovia Bank of
North Carclina, N.A.

Box 3001

Winston-Salem, NC 27102
Information contact:

Bill Kepley

(919) 770-6190 or (B0D) 633-4236

Dividend Reinvesting Agent
Wachovia Bank of
MNorth Carolina, N.A.

Box 3001

Winston-Salem, NC 27102
Information contact:

Larry E. Watkins

(919) 770-4075 or (800) 633-4236

Dividend Policy
Lowe's has paid a cash dividend
each quarter since becoming a
public company in 1961.

Lowe's Telephone
(919) 651-4000

Lowe's Fax
(919) 651-4766
Lowe's Telex
510-922.5737
Lowe's Mailing Address
Box 1111
Morth Wilkesboro, NC 28656
Lowe's Street Address
State Highway 268 East
(Elkin Highway)
MNorth Wilkesboro, NC 28659
Annual Meeting Date
May 29, 1992 at 10:00 AM
Lowe's Corporate Offices
MNorth Wilkesboro, NC
Stock Transfer Agent & Registrar
Wachowvia Bank of
North Carolina, N.A.
Box 3001
Winston-Salem, NC 27102
Information contact:
Ginger Lakey
{(919) 770-4994 or (800) 653-4236
Lowe's Common Stock
Ticker symbol: LOW
Listed:
New York Stock Exchange
20 Broad Street
MNew York, NY 10005

Pacific Stock Exchange
301 Pine Street
San Francisco, CA 94104

The Stock Exchange (London)

Old Broad Street
London, EC2N1HP England
General Counsel

McElwee, McElwee & Warden
906 B Street Rear
North Wilkesboro, NC 28659
(9193 838-1111

Certilied Public Accountanis
Deeloitte & Touche
2000 First Citizens Bank Plaza
Charlotte, NC 28202
(704) 372-3560

Shareholder Services
Shareholders’ and security
analysts' inguiries should be
directed to:

W, Chftf Oxford, Vice-President,

Corporate Relations

{919y 651-4631

or Clarissa 5. Felts, Manager,
Investor Research

(919) 651-4254
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31-Year Review

LIFD accounting
Fiscal Years End January 31, of Following Calendar Year 10-Year Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
Except Fiscal Years Prior to 1978 Which Ended July 31 CGR 1991 1990 1989
Stores and People
1 Number of Stores 2.8% 306 309 306
2 Square Footage 136 8,016,136 7,061,925 6219018
3 Number of Employees 11.8 18,368 15,556 15,271
4 Customers Served (Thousands) 18.3% 64,284 54,142 47,246
5 Average Customer Purchase $47.54 §52.33 $56.10
Comparative Income Statement (Thousands)
6 Total Sales 13.20u 53,056,247 $2,833,108 52,650,547
T Depreciation 18.7 58,298 51,431 46,134
8 LIFD Credit (Charge) N (5,979) 688 (3,548)
9 Store Restructuring 71,288
10 Operating Income? 56 B0, 187 169,101 174,158
11 Pre-Tax Earnings? (17.3) 4,951 100,251 108,796
12 Taxes on Income NM (1,536) 29,164 33.884
13 Extraordinary ltem Net of Tax - — — —
14 Cumulative Effect on Prior Years of a Change in
Accounting Principle - - — -
15 Net Earnings (9.6) 6,487 71,087 74,912
16 Cash Flow From Operations? 14.5 109,819 123 467 121,691
17 Cash Dividends Paid 7.9% 20,020 19,334 18,228
18 Eamnings Retained MM § (13533) $ 51,753 § 56,684
Dollars Per Share (Weighted Average Number of Shares)
19 Sales 11.9% $83.70 £76.13 $71.10
20 Eamings (10.7) 0.18 1.91 2m
21 Cash Flow From Operations 13.2 3.0 3.32 3.76
22 Cash Dividends 6.7 0.55 52 A9
23 Eamnings Retained NI N 1.39 1.52
24 Shareholders' Equity 12.9% 51831 £18.34 §17.32
Strategic Profit Model*
25 Asset Turnover (Sales Per Asset Dollar) § 2.54 § 247 g 2.44
26 Return on Sales (Net Earnings as Percent of Sales) w 0.21% x 2.51% * 2.83%
27 Return on Assets = 0.54% = 6.20% = 6.90%
28 Leverage Factor (Asset Dollars Per Equity Dollar) % 1.76 ®x 1.78 *% 1.85
29 Return on Shareholders’ Equity = 095% =11.01% =12.77%
Comparative Balance Sheet (Thousands)
30 Total Current Assels 147% % 770,078 § 616461 § 595946
31 Cash and ShortTerm Investments (0.4) 30,814 50,144 55,566
32 Accounts Receivable — Net 8.2 115,739 96,354 121,897
33 Inventories (Lower of Cost or Market) 18.2 602,795 460,804 407 677
34 Other Current Assets 24.0 14,275 9,159 8,610
35 Fixed Assels 18.7 612,955 541,464 507,811
36 Other Assets 56.8 46,845 45,127 43,637
37 Total Assels 16.7 1,441,228 1,203,062 1,147,394
38 Total Current Liabilities 221 588,951 337,676 307,890
39 Accounts Payable 20.4 307 814 186,860 210,197
40 Other Current Liabilities 6.7 61,400 44,578 42 685
41 Long-Term Debt (Excluding Current Portion) 8.8 113,650 159,204 167,896
42 Total Liabilities 19.6 772,674 520,380 501,836
43 Shareholders’ Equity 14.2% §$ 668,554 S 682,672 § 645,558
44 Equity Divided by Long-Term Debt (Excluding Current Portion) 5.88 4.29 3.84
45 Year-End Leverage Factor: Assets Divided by Equity 216 1.76 1.78
Shareholders, Shares and Book Value
46 Shareholders of Record, Year-End 6,216 6,261 6,361
47 Shares Outstanding. Year-End (Thousands)® 36,440 36,460 37,255
48 Weighted Awverage Shares, Year-End (Thousands) 36,513 37.214 37,278
49 Book Value £18.35 $18.72 $17.33
Stock Price Range During Year®
50 High (Adjusted for Stock Splits) $41.00 $£49.63 £32.13
51 Low (Adjusted for Stock Splits) $24.00 $18.38 £22.13
Price Earnings Ratio
52 High 231 26 16

53 Low 135 10 1




Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Base Year Fiscal Fiscal

1988 1987 1986 1985 1984 1983 1982  Fiscal 1981 1980 1979
296 295 300 282 248 238 235 229 214 209
5,062,865 4,773,743 4,452 161 3.641,762 2,980,000 2,529,040 2,337,351 2,232,008 1,998,239 1,831,419
14,774 14,761 14,783 13,317 10,727 8,715 7.080 6,003 5,950 5,804
43,744 40,739 36,346 47T 23,938 18,889 15,075 11,973 11,376 11,024
$57.54 £59.95 £62.83 565.84 570.55 575.74 $68.59 7417 S77.67 82.02
$2516.879 52,442,177 52,283,480 $2.072,560 51,688,738 $1,430,576 51,034,032 £888,042 5£883.614 $904,651
41,184 38,546 30,474 21,799 14,805 12,034 11,178 10,522 10,320 10,064
(5,058) (3,829) 2.960 3,445 2 686 (5,684) (1,626) (920) (6,686) (7,484)
167,778 158,565 152,348 146,131 136,195 110,293 63,181 46,714 50,800 64,412
105,604 an,7av 108,126 112,865 119,076 96,891 47,525 33,226 36,277 47.331
36,403 34,833 53,022 53.151 57,633 46,276 22,394 15,367 17,386 22,376
- — (2,885) - - - — - — -
- 5,226 - - — - — — - -
69,201 61,180 52,219 59,714 61,443 50,615 25,131 17,859 18,891 24,955
114,913 103,306 87,543 83,980 79,489 66,501 39,686 28,3 28,959 35,019
17,281 17,040 15,597 13,199 11,600 11,600 9,800 9,376 7.813 6,511
$§ 51920 $ 44140 $ 36622 $ 46515 $ 49843 S5 39015 $ 15331 § 8,483 § 11,078 $ 18,444
£66.68 $61.49 558.51 $56.77 $46.59 £39 53 £31.02 £27.28 22714 827.79
1.83 1.54 1.34 1.64 1.70 1.40 19 .55 .58 T7
3.04 2.60 2.24 2.30 2.19 1.84 1.19 B7 .89 1.08
46 43 .40 .36 .32 .32 .29 .29 .24 .20
1.38 1.1 94 1.27 1.38 1.08 A6 .26 a4 a7
$15.55 514 .66 $13.85 £11.16 £ 942 $ 8.05 5 5.96 5 5.45 5 5.19 5 4,89
£245 g£252 $ 267 $3.26 §3.24 § 3.64 §3.37 §294 §295 §3.35
w 2.75% w 2.51% wx 2.29% = 2.88% * 3.64% ® 3.54% » 2.43% » 2.01% » 2.14% = 2.76%
= B.74% = 6.31% = 6.10% = 9,390 =11.79%% =12 89% = B8.19% = 5.91% = B6.31% = 9.25%
x 1.76 » 1.79 = 2.10 = 1.86 = 1.79 * 1.98 » 173 * 1.79 * 1.90 * 1.92
=11.88% =11.32% =12.820% =17.49% =21.10% =25.52% =14.15% =10.58% =11.9490% =17.76%0

§ 577,550 § 552464 $546,883 $534 649 $432,370 §377,572 $271,535 $195,370 $209,756 £210,913

60,257 43,889 50,013 87,190 84,204 74,248 25,341 32,070 15,567 22,959
127,738 117,932 118,693 127,603 97,319 94 658 75,388 48,107 68,172 66,442
379,383 373,846 368,135 313,143 248,268 205,100 167,535 113,529 125,104 118,511

9,466 7,325 10,042 6,713 2,579 3,565 327 1,664 913 3.001
479,886 453,008 413,220 308,603 195,237 141,238 121,406 110,673 91,399 88,695
28,361 21,857 9,116 12,939 6,501 827 559 521 573 29
1,085,797 1,027,329 969,219 856,111 634,108 519,637 393,500 306,564 301,728 299,899
285,733 231,906 257,303 251,669 189,418 168,830 134,999 80,199 80,781 84,600
203,956 157,089 163,260 168,068 125,003 110,415 90,580 47,959 52,003 45,567

44,211 43,766 94,043 83,601 64,415 58,415 44,418 32,240 28,778 25,245
190,056 186,219 152,877 183,909 92 488 51,891 56,233 48,864 51,929 56,112

498,946 444,893 428,685 448,818 292,760 228,132 194,717 129,063 132,710 140,802
§ 586,851 § 582,436 $540,534 $407,373 $341,348 $291,505 5$198,783 177,501 £169,018 $159,097

3.09 3.13 3.53 222 3.69 5.62 3.53 3.63 3.25 2.84
1.85 1.76 1.79 210 1.86 1.78 1.98 1.73 1.79 1.89
6,602 6,163 6,052 6,253 6,372 54928 5,144 5,415 4,620 5,147
37,139 39,498 39,624 37,082 36,248 36,248 33,333 32,555 32,565 32,555
37,748 39,719 39,029 36,509 36,248 36,193 33,333 32,555 32,555 32,555
$15.80 $14.75 $13.64 $10.99 5942 5 8.04 § 5.96 § 545 § 5.19 5 489
$24.38 $32.50 $40.88 531.13 $29.63 $32.75 §22.35 $11.36 $ 995 5 8.20
$18.00 $15.25 £23.13 $20.88 $16.25 $18.45 5 7.65 B 6.30 $ 5.3 % 6.50
13 21 N 19 17 23 30 21 17 1

10 10 17 13 10 13 10 1 8 8




Supplemental Information

FIFD accounting
Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Stock splits and stock dividends
1977 1975 1970 1965 1961 gince 1960
175 130 64 a5 15 W A 100% stock dividend, effective April 5,
1,570,000 1,209,000 379,653 199,537 71,680 1966, (which had the net effect of a 2-for-1
5,274 3,574 1,670 762 399 stock split).
8,224 5,702 2,/ 1,284 851 M A 2-for-1 stock split, effective November 18,
gr2.2v £59.78 £47.09 $44. 44 47.85 1969,
W A 50% stock dividend, effective November
£594,358 $340.882 £128,491 557,044 $31,128 30, 1971, (which had the net effect of a
6.212 4,976 1,221 305 133 3-tar-2 stock split).
- - - - - I A 33'4% stock dividend, effective July 25, :
1972, (which had the net effect of a 4-for-3 -_—
52,856 27,510 11,487 4,413 2,185 R A
42,487 20,811 9,938 3,942 1,890 E: _
21 056 10 319 5 08 1,896 o956 W A 50% stock dividend, effective June 2,
T T g v = 1976, (which had the net effect of a 3-for-2
stock split),
—_ o — = — W A 3-for-2 stock split, effective November 2,
21,431 10,492 4,870 2,046 934 1961,
27,643 14,669 6,091 2,351 1,067 W A 5-for-3 stock split, effective April 29,
2,735 1.1 844 519 102 1083,
5 18,696 § 8.3 S 4,026 § 1,527 § 8a2
§18.26 $10.47 g 407 $ 1.87 5 1.04 Explanatory notes
gg ﬁ :llg g; ﬁ 1 Pretax earnings plus depreciation plus
08 04 '03 02 o interest,
57 .29 13 .05 .03 2 Before extraordinary item in 1986 and
5347 § 240 § .79 5 .3 5 a7 cumulative effect on prior years of a
change in accounting principle in 1987,
$ 3.01 g 296 $ 3.09 $ 3.20 § 3.32 2 Before adjustments for changes in relatad
x 3,610 % 3.08% x 3.79% X 3.5906 % 3.00% pperating assets and llabilities.
=10.84% = 6.97% =11.72% =11.49% = 9.56% 4 Asset Turnover - Total Sales divided by
% 2.10 = 2.24 % 1.99 ® 2.4 » 2.57 beginning assets
=22.T1% =15.60% =23.34% =26.55% =25.60% Return on Sales - Total Profit divided by
Total Sales 1
Return on Assets - Total Profit divided b
$186,198 $108,784 $38,878 $19,187 § 9,305 Bz;l';n“n’:ng ;S:&ts Otal Frofit divided by B
13,324 11,574 4,658 3,801 1,299 Leverage Factor - Beginning Assets
76,162 38,533 14,887 7,165 3,108 Lol .
96 164 58 223 19.040 8.156 4 801 divided by Beginning Equity
' : ! ' L Return on Shareholders Equity - Total
548 454 293 65 a7 ot ST
80.210 45127 10.390 3 832 1299 Profit divided by Beginning Equity
401 452 148 77 1,301 $ Variation in the outstanding shares is a
245,809 154,363 49,416 23,006 11,835 result of the following:
87,709 42,964 21,212 11,213 4,922 1963 — Treasury Stock purchase
60,324 29,727 15,178 7,913 3187 February 2, 1382 — 778,018 comman
27.385 13,236 6,034 3,300 1,735 shares issued to ESOP.
46,244 33,156 3.315 2.377 1.791 February 8, 1983 — 2917 million common
133,953 76,120 24,527 13,606 6,792 shares sold in public issuance.
$112,857 $ 78,243 $24,889 $ 9,490 $ 5,043 October 10, 1985 — 833,373 common
shares issued to ESOP.
2.44 2.36 7.51 3.99 2.81 April 25, 1986 — 2.2 million common
2.19 1.97 1.99 2.43 2.35 shares sold in public issuance.
May 15, 1986 — 300,000 commaon shares
4,588 3,755 2,117 1,871 — issued to ESOP.
32 555 32,655 31,558 30,458 30,000 1987 — Treasury Stock purchase
32,555 32,585 31,558 30,458 30,000 1988 — Treasury Stock purchase
$ 3.47 £ 240 £ 79 s .31 £ A7 1990 — Shares purchased and retired
1991 — Shares purchased and retired
— Ongoing employee option transactians.
$13.10 $12.40 § 4.63 $ 1.0 - & Stock price source: The Wall Streer
3 8.70 $ 5.33 $ 2.47 & 63 - Journal
NM = not meaningful
20 39 31 15 - CGR = compound growth rate
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Lowe's Profile

Lowe's Companies, Inc. is one of America’s largest
specialty retailers of building materials and related products
for the do-it-yourself home improvement and home
construction markets.

Lowe's 306 stores serve customers in 20 states located
mainly in the South Atlantic and South Central regions of the
United States.

Each Lowe’s store combines the merchandise, sales, and
service of three businesses: the do-it-yourself home center
business, the building contractor business, and the consumer
durables business. Thus, uniquely in our industry, Lowe’s
markets to a triple customer franchise.

Our average store in 1991 did $9.9 million in sales, of
which 54% was to home center customers, 31% to
professional contractors, and 15% to durables customers.
Our big stores averaged $13 million in sales.

Our employees numbered 18,400 or an average of 60 per
store at the end of 1991.

In FORTUNE magazine’s latest listing of America's top
retailers, Lowe's ranked:

* 42nd in Sales

e 31st in Profits

* 25th in Total Return to Investors

e 31st in Market Value

Lowe’s has been a publicly owned company for thirty
years, since October 6, 1961. Our stock has been listed on
the New York Stock Exchange since December 19, 1979; on
the Pacific Stock Exchange since January 26, 1981, and on
The Stock Exchange in London since October 6, 1981.
Shares are traded under the ticker symbol of LOW.

LOWE'S

Lowe's Companies, Inc.

PO Box 1111

North Wilkesboro, NC 28656
(919)651-4000
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